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HARYANA GOVERNMENT
URBAN LOCAL BODIES DEPARTMENT

Notification

The 20th May, 2025

Haryana Municipal Account Code, 2025
Under Haryana Municipal Act, 1973
and
Haryana Municipal Corporation Act, 1994
PART-I

No. S.0. 45/H.A.24/1973/S.257/2025. -- In exercise of powers conferred under sub-sections (1) and (3) of section 257
of Haryana Municipal Act, 1973 (24 of 1973) and with reference to the Haryana Government, Urban Local Bodies
Department notification No. S.0.7/H.A.24/1973/S.257/2025, dated the 3rd February, 2025, the Governor of Haryana
hereby makes the Municipal Account Code to regulate the accounting procedures of all Municipal Corporations,
Municipal Councils and Municipal Committees in the State of Haryana, namely:-

CHAPTER-1
General
Short title, extent and commencement

1.1 This Code may be called the Haryana Municipal Account Code, 2025.
1.2 It extends to all the municipalities falling in State of Haryana.
1.3 It shall come into force on the date of its publication in the Official Gazette.

14

Definitions
In this Code, unless the context otherwise requires, -

1.(4.1) “account” means a formal record of a particular type of transaction expressed in money or
another unit of measurement and kept in a ledger;

1.(4.2) “accountant” means any senior employee of the Municipality entrusted with the responsibility of
accounting of incomes, expenditures and assets and liabilities of the Municipality, irrespective of
the cadre to which the employee belongs;

1.(4.3) “accounting entry” means a record of the financial transaction in the books of account like a
journal, ledger or cash book etc;

1.(4.4) “head of accounts branch” means any officer who is in-charge of the Accounts branch of the
Municipality entrusted with the responsibility of accounting the incomes, expenditures, Assets
and Liabilities of the Municipality;

1.(4.5) “amount payable” means an amount owed by a Municipality on account of goods purchased or
services received or in respect of contractual obligations; also termed as a trade creditor or sundry
creditors;

1.(4.6) “accounting period” means the period for which an account statement is customarily prepared
(Generally from 1% April to 315 March);

1.(4.7) “accounting principles” means the general principle and procedure under which the accounts of
a Municipality are maintained. An accounting principle is an adaptation or special application of a
principle necessary to meet the peculiarities of a Municipality or the needs of its management;

1.(4.8) “amount receivable” means amounts due from a person from whom amounts are due for goods
sold, or services rendered or due in respect of statutory levies or in respect of contractual
obligations and includedebt or, trade debtor and sundry debtor. The words ‘Receivables’ and
‘Debtors’ are used interchangeably;

1.(4.9) “accounting unit” means a zone, circle, division, project or ward office identified by the
Municipality as a unit for maintenance of accounting records;

1.(4.10) “accounting year” means the Financial Year as prescribed by the State Government.
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1.(4.11) “accrual” means recognition of revenues and costs as they are earned and incurred and includes
recognition of transactions relating to assets and liabilities irrespective of the actual receipts and
payments;

1.(4.12) “accrual basis of accounting” means the method of accounting whereby revenues and expenses
are identified with specific periods such as a month or year and are recorded as accrued or
incurred along-with acquired assets without regard to the date of receipt or payment of cash
distinguished from cash basis;

1.(4.13)“accrued or due” in respect to an asset or a liability it means “a claim which has become
enforceable arising out from the sale or purchase of goods/services, contractual/statutory
obligation or otherwise and has become receivable or payable, in respect to an income or an
expenditure it means the amount earned or incurred in an accounting period for which a claim has
become enforceable and it arises from the sale or purchase of goods/services, contractual
obligation or from constitution power or function entrusted by Government or Law to local
governance or otherwise and has become receivable or payable”;

1.(4.14) “accrued but not due” in respect to an asset or a liability it means a claim which has not yet
become enforceable which accumulates with the passage of time or arises from the sale purchase
of goods or rendering of services which, on the date of period-end, have been partly performed
and are not yet receivable or payable and with respect to an income or an expense, it means the
amount earned or incurred in an accounting period, but for which no enforceable claim has
become due in that period. It accumulates with time or arises from the sale or purchase of goods/
services which on the date of accounting, have been partly performed and are not yet receivable
or payable;

1.(4.15) “accumulated depreciation” means the total up to date periodic depreciation charges on
depreciable assets from the date of purchase/put to use;

1.(4.16) “act” means the Haryana Municipal Act, 1973 (24 of 1973), or Haryana Municipal Corporation
Act 1994 (16 of 1994), as the case may be;

1.(4.17) “adequate funds” means minimum municipal fund balance to be maintained by Municipalities
to ensure its financial stability and regular payment of salary and allowance for three months to its
employees;

1.(4.18) “administrative department” means the Department of Government in Urban Local Bodies;

1.(4.19) “administrative approval” means the formal acceptance by the department of the proposal for
an original work (other than a petty work) to be undertaken for the department either by the
Engineering Branch or any other Branch to which the work has been assigned;

1.(4.20) “advance” means a payment made on account of, but before completion of a contract or before
the acquisition of goods or receipt of services;

1.(4.21) “amortization” means the gradual and systematic writing off of an asset or an account over an
appropriate period. The amount on which amortization is providedis referred to as amortizable
amount. Depreciation accounting is a form of amortization applied to depreciable assets.
Depletion accounting is another form of amortization applied to waste assets. Amortization also
refers to gradual extinction or provision for the extinction of debt by gradual redemption or
sinking fund payments or the gradual writing off to revenue of miscellaneous expenditure carried
forward;

1.(4.22) “annual report” means a statement of the financial condition and operating results of a
Municipality, prepared yearly for submission to interested parties; summarizing its operations for
the preceding year and including a balance sheet, income and expenditure statement, cash flow
statement and often a receipts and payments statement and the auditor's report, together with
comments by the Chief Municipal Officer/Chairperson on the year's operations;

1.(4.23) “assets” means tangible assets, objects or intangible rights owned by the municipality and
carrying probable future benefits;

1.(4.24) “assigned revenue” means the revenues in the nature of a share in the revenues of the State
Government, to compensate for certain losses in revenue and arrangement of resources of the
municipalities to meet their administrative and development cost and is determined on the basis
of the revenues collected by Municipalities and the recommendations of the State Finance
Commissions and devolution of funds to municipalities;

1.(4.25) “asset replacement fund” means a fund created for replacement of an asset. The fund shall
normally be equal to the amount of depreciation provided on the fixed assets and shall be utilized
only for replacement of those fixed assets or for any other purpose as resolved by the
Municipalities;
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1.(4.26) “auditor” means Auditor in the establishment of the Examiner, Local Fund Auditor Haryana
(Now Director, Local Audit) or State Government in Finance Department to audit the accounts
of Municipality;

1.(4.27) “bad debts” means debts owed to the municipalities, which are considered to be irrecoverable,
e.g., arrears of taxes, fees, and other revenue left uncollected and considered to be irrecoverable;

1.(4.28) “balancing” means a balance of an account, debit, and credit which are totalled up separately and
the difference is ascertained. This difference is put on the side that is lower to balance the two
sides of an account;

1.(4.29) “balance sheet” means a statement of the financial position of a Municipality as at a given date,
which exhibits its assets, liabilities, capital, reserves and other account balances at their respective
book values;

1.(4.30) “bank book” means a book of original entry for recording transactions about Bank Accounts of
the Municipality;

1.(4.31) “bank reconciliation statement” means a statement which reflects the nature and amount of
transaction, not responded either by the Municipality or by the Bank as on a particular date. Such
a statement may also reflect errors/omissions in the recording of the transaction between the
Municipality and the Bank;

1.(4.32) “books of original entry” means a record book recognized by law or custom, in which
transactions are successively recorded, and which is the source of postings to ledgers; Books of
original entry include General and special journals, such as Cash and Bank books;

1.(4.33) “budget” means a quantitative plan of activities and programs expressed concerning money in
respect of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and shall express the municipality goals
regarding specific financial and operating objectives. The budget shall be prepared in formats as
prescribed;

1.(4.34) “budget grant” means the total sum entered on the expenditure side of a budget estimate under
a major head and adopted by the municipality, and includes any sum by which such budget grant
is increased or reduced by transfer from or to other heads in accordance with the provisions of
the Haryana Municipal Act 1973 (24 of 1973) and Haryana Municipal Corporation Act, 1994
(16 of 1994), and the rules and the regulations made thereunder;

1.(4.35) “CAG” means the Comptroller and Auditor General of India appointed under article 148 of the
Constitution of India;

1.(4.36) “capitalization” means an expenditure for a fixed asset or addition to it that has the effect of
enlarging physical dimensions, increasing productivity, lengthening future life or lowering future
costs;

1.(4.37) “capital expenditure” means expenditure incurred for fixed assets creation and additions to it
including expenditure that adds fixed asset units or that has the effect of improving the capacity,
efficiency, life span or economy of operations of an existing asset;

1.(4.38) “capital work in progress” means expenditure on capital assets which are in the process of
construction or completion;

1.(4.39) “cash book” means a book of original entry for cash receipts, disbursements/ payments or both;

1.(4.40) “cash flow statement” means a financial statement prepared for an accounting period to depict
the inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents of an enterprise. It reports cash flows
classified by operating, investing and financing activities;

1.(4.41) “casting” means totalling of amounts in the books of accounts;

1.(4.42) “casual vacancy” means a vacancy occurring otherwise than by efflux of time in the office of a
member or in any other elective office;

1.(4.43) “chairperson” means Mayor in case of Municipal Corporation or President in case of Municipal
Council or Municipal Committee

1.(4.44) “chartered accountant” means chartered accountant within the meaning of the Chartered
Accountant Act, 1949 (Central Act 38 of 1949);

1.(4.45) “chief administrator” means the Chief Administrator of the board as defined in section 5A of
Haryana Municipal Act, 1973 (24 of 1973) or Chief Administrator of the Haryana Slum
Clearance Board and Haryana Urban Infrastructural Development Board ;

1.(4.46) “chief engineer” means an engineer appointed as such by the State Government;

1.(4.47) “chief municipal officer” means Commissioner in case of Municipal Corporations, Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) in case of District Headquarter Municipal Councils, Executive Officer
(EO) in case of all other Municipal Councils and Secretary in case of Municipal Committees;
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1.(4.48) “chart of account” means a unique numeric or alphanumeric identification given to each account
to facilitate classification and ease of recording;

1.(4.49) “commissioner” means Commissioner of the Corporation appointed by the State Government;

1.(4.50) “contingent liability” means an obligation relating to an existing condition or situation which
may arise in future depending on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future event(s);

1.(4.51) “contra entry” means an item on one side of an account which offsets fully or in part one or
more items on the opposite side of the same account;

1.(4.52) “control account” means an account in the general ledger that consists of related sub-accounts.
The total of the related sub-accounts shall match with the balance in the related control account;

1.(4.53) “corrupt practice” means any of the practices specified under rule 73 of the Haryana Municipal
Elections Rules, 1978 framed under the Haryana Municipal Act, 1973 (24 of 1973) or specified
under section 22 of the Haryana Municipal Corporation Act, 1994 (16 of 1994);

1.(4.54) “cost” means the amount of expenditure incurred on or attributable to a specified article, product
and activity

1.(4.55) “cost of acquisition” means the cost of an asset comprising its purchase price and includes
import duties and other non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in arriving at the purchase price;

1.(4.56) “cost of investment” means the amount of expenditure incurred on or attributable to the
purchase/acquisition of an investment and it includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees,
and duties;

1.(4.57) “credit” means a book keeping entry recording the reduction or elimination of an asset or an
expense, or the creation of or addition to liability or item of net worth or revenue; an entry on the
right side of an account; the amount so recorded;

1.(4.58) “current assets” means cash and other assets that are expected to be converted into cash or
consumed in the rendering of services in the normal course of operations of the Municipalities
normally within twelve months;

1.(4.59) “current liability” means liability including loans, deposits and bank overdrafts which fall due
for payment in a relatively short period, normally not more than twelve months;

1.(4.60) “debenture” means a formal document constituting acknowledgment of a debt by a
Municipality, usually given under its common seal and normally containing provisions regarding
payment of interest, repayment of principle and security, if any and it is transferable in the
appropriate manner;

1.(4.61) “debit” means the goods or benefit received from a transaction; a book-keeping entry recording
the creation of or addition to an asset or an expense, or the reduction or elimination of a liability,
or item of net worth or revenue, an entry on the left side of an account, the amount so recorded;

1.(4.62) “deferred revenue expenditure” means an expenditure for which payment has been made or a
liability incurred but which is carried forward on the presumption that it shall be of benefit over a
subsequent period or periods. This is also referred to as Deferred Expenditure;

1.(4.63) “deficit” means the excess of expenditure over income of the Municipality for the accounting
period under consideration;

1.(4.64) “depreciable amount” means the historical cost or other amount substituted for the historical
cost of a depreciable asset in the financial statements less the estimated residual value;

1.(4.65) “depreciable asset” means an asset which is expected to be used during more than one
accounting year, has a limited useful life, and is held by the Municipalities for use in the supply
of goods and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and not for the purpose
of sale in the ordinary course of operations of the Municipality;

1.(4.66) “depreciation” means a measure of the wearing out, consumption or other loss of value of a
depreciable asset arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through technology and
market changes. It is allocated to charge a fair proportion in each accounting period during the
useful life of the asset. It includes amortization of assets whose useful life is predetermined and
depletion of wasting assets;

1.(4.67) “depreciation method” means the arithmetic procedure followed in determining a provision for
depreciation (an expense) and maintaining the accumulated balance;

1.(4.68) “district municipal commissioner” means the District Municipal Commissioner as defined
under Haryana Municipal Act, 1973 (24 of 1973);
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1.(4.69) “depreciation rate” means a percentage which when applied to the depreciable amount shall
yield depreciation expense for a year;

1.(4.70) “dividend income” means an income received from investments by a Municipality in
shares/units;

1.(4.71) “divisional commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Division in which the Corporation
is situated and includes any other officer appointed by the Government to perform all or any of
the functions of the Divisional Commissioner under this Act;

1.(4.72) “directorate of urban local bodies” means office of Director General/Director, Urban Local
Bodies Haryana;

1.(4.73) “drawing and disbursing officer” means the head of the office or any person designated by
Government or any competent authority to exercise the power of drawing and disbursing
officers;

1.(4.74) “earmarked funds” means the funds representing special funds to be utilized for specific
purposes;

1.(4.75) “employee” means an Officer or officials appointed by Government of Haryana/ Director Urban
Local Bodies/ District Municipal Commissioner/ Deputy Commissioner/ Chief Municipal Officer
of Municipality and include any Government servants in foreign service under the Municipalities
but does not include the elected/ nominated persons;

1.(4.76) “entertainment™ shall have the same meaning as defined under the Haryana Municipal
Entertainment Duty Act, 2019 (30 of 2019);

1.(4.77) “executive engineer” means an engineer appointed as such by the State Government;

1.(4.78) “expenses” means a cost relating to the operations of an accounting period or to the revenue
earned during the period or the benefits of which do not extend beyond that period;

1.(4.79) “finance commission” means the Finance Commission constituted by the State Government
under articles 243 I and 243 Y of the Constitution of India;

1.(4.80) “financial statement” means the annual accounting reports prepared under the fund based
double-entry accrual accounting system that contains a balance sheet, income, and expenditure
statement, cash flow statement, often a receipts and payments statement or any other supporting
statement or other presentation of financial data derived from accounting records;

1.(4.81) “finished goods” means the goods held for sale in the ordinary course of business.;

1.(4.82) “fixed assets” means an asset held to provide services and which is not held for resale in the
normal course of operations of the Municipality;

1.(4.83) “fixed deposit” means a deposit for a specified period and at a specified rate of interest;

1.(4.84) “folio reference” means a page number or voucher or another number in a book or document of
original or final entry, which refers to the disposition or source of entry or posting;

1.(4.85) “form” means form prescribed in this Haryana Municipal Account Code 2025 or any other
forms prescribed with the approval of Local Audit Department, Haryana;

1.(4.86) “fund” means the Municipal Fund of Corporation constituted under the Haryana Municipal
Corporation Act, 1994 (16 of 1994) or all the Municipal fund of Councils and Committee
consituted under the Haryana Municipal Act 1973 (24 of 1973) or a separate fund created for an
activity for which separate Books of Accounts and Financial Statements are required to be
prepared, as per orders of the State Government;

1.(4.87) “goods” means every kind of moveable property and includes stock and shares, growing crops,
grass, and things attached to or forming part of the land, which is agreed to be severed before
sale or under the contract of sale. Actionable claims and money are not included in the definition
of goods;

1.(4.88) “goods and service tax” shall have the same meaning as defined in article 366 (12A) of the
Constitution of India;

1.(4.89) “government” means the Government of the State of Haryana

1.(4.90) “grant” means the assistance by the State Government or Central Government or any
organization, authority in cash or kind to a Municipality for past or future compliance with
certain conditions excluding those forms of government assistance which cannot reasonably
have a value placed upon them and transactions with the government which cannot be
distinguished from the normal transactions of the Municipality;

1.(4.91) “gross block” means the total cost of acquisition/purchase of all the fixed assets of the
Municipality;

1.(4.92) “head of the department” means the office of Director General/ Director Urban Local Bodies
Haryana;
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1.(4.93) “hire purchase agreement” means a contract in which a person hires goods for a specified
period and at a fixed rent, with the added condition that if he shall retain the goods for the full
period and pay all the instalments of rent as they become due the contract shall determine and
the title vest absolutely in him;

1.(4.94) “ICAI” means the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

1.(4.95) “immovable property” means land, benefits arising out of land and things attached to the earth,
or permanently fastened to anything attached to the earth;

1.(4.96) “income” means the money or money equivalent earned or accrued during an accounting period,
increasing the total of previously existing net assets, and arising from the provision of any type
of services, constitution power, statutory levies, and rentals. Income includes not only the
amount received or receipts but also the amount receivable under the accrual accounting system;

1.(4.97)“income and expenditure statement” means a financial statement, prepared by the
Municipalities, to present their revenues and expenses for an accounting period and to show the
excess of revenues over expenses or vice-versa for that period. It is similar to the profit and loss
statement and is also called a revenue and expense statement;

1.(4.98) “interest” means the service charge for the use of money or capital, paid at agreed intervals by
the user, and commonly expressed as an annual percentage of the outstanding principal,

1.(4.99) “investments” means assets held not for operational purposes or rendering services, i.e., assets
other than fixed assets or current assets (e.g., Securities, shares, debentures, immovable
properties);

1.(4.100) “inter unit transaction” means the transactions between one or more accounting units of the
Urban Local bodies;

1.(4.101) “infrastructure assets” means those assets with the characteristics of being, a part of a system
or network, specialized in nature and did not have alternative uses, immovable, and subject to
constraints on disposal;

1.(4.102) “journal book” means a book of original entry in which transactions are recorded not provided
for in specialized journals;

1.(4.103) “joint venture” means a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity to share expertise in a single defined project which is subject to joint control;

1.(4.104) “lapsed deposits” means the deposits unclaimed for more than such period or periods as defined
in the act or provisions governing the Municipalities;

1.(4.105) “lease” means an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or
series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period. A lease agreement also
includes a Hire Purchase agreement. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially the entire risks and rewards incident to ownership and other leases are classified as
operating leases;

1.(4.106) “ledger” means a compilation of all accounts used for accounting purposes;

1.(4.107) “liability” means an amount owing by the Municipality to another person, payable in money, or
goods or services: the consequence of an asset or service received or a loss incurred or accrued;
particularly, any debt-

(a) due or past due (current liability)
OR

(b) due at a specified time in future (e.g. funded debt, accrued liability)
OR

(c) due only on failure to perform a future act (contingent liability)

1.(4.108) “long term investment” means any investment falling outside the ambit of current investments;

1.(4.109) “minimum balance” means a sum equal to one month salary and wages to be declared by the
competent authority, as the case may be, in the beginning of each financial year;

1.(4.110) “mortgage” means a lien on the land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and other property,
fixed or moveable, given by a borrower to the lender as security for his loan;

1.(4.111) “movable property” means properties other than immovable properties;

1.(4.112) “municipal engineer” means an engineer appointed as such by the Government of Haryana;

1.(4.113) “municipality” shall have the same meaning as defined in the Haryana Municipal Act 1973 (24
of 1973) or article 243Q in the Constitution of India, which may be a Municipal Committee or a
Municipal Council or a Municipal Corporation;

1.(4.114) “national municipal accounts manual” means the Manual issued by the Ministry of Housing
and Urban Affairs, Government of India;
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1.(4.115) “narration” means a brief description written below an accounting entry. It is normally written
in brackets and starts with the word “Being.” It explains as to why the entry has been recorded
and other related aspects of the entry;

1.(4.116) “net assets” means the excess of the book value of the assets of an accounting unit over its
liabilities due to the outsiders;

1.(4.117) “net block” means a gross block less accumulated depreciation of all the fixed assets of the
Municipality;

1.(4.118) “payments” means amounts actually paid and accounted during the year;

1.(4.119) “period end” means the last day of any accounting period, e.g., quarter, half-year and year-end;

1.(4.120) “pooling of interest method” means a method of accounting for amalgamations the object of
which is to account for the amalgamation as if the separate operations of the amalgamating
entities were intended to be continued by the transferee entity. Accordingly, only minimal
changes are made in aggregating the individual financial statements of the amalgamating
entities;

1.(4.121) “posting” means an act of entering separately the debit and credit aspect of transactions from the
books of original entry in respective accounts maintained in the ledger;

1.(4.122) “prepaid expense” means a payment for the expense in an accounting period the benefit for
which shall accrue in the subsequent accounting period(s);

1.(4.123) “provision of expense” means an amount written off or retained by way of providing for
depreciation or diminution in value of assets or retained by way of providing for any known
liability the amount of which cannot be determined with substantial accuracy;

1.(4.124) “provision for unrealized revenue” means a provision made for revenue considered doubtful of
recovery;

1.(4.125) “public servant” means every elected member/ nominated person and employee of the
Municipality and shall be deemed to a public servant within the meaning of section 2(28) of the
Bhartiya Nyaya Sanhita, 2023 (Central Act 45 of 2023);

1.(4.126) “qualifying fixed asset” means an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready
for its intended use or sale. Ordinarily, a period of twelve months is considered as a substantial
period unless facts and circumstances of the case may justify a shorter or longer period. In
estimating the period, the time which an asset takes, technologically and commercially, to get it
ready for its intended use or sale shall be considered;

1.(4.127) “receipt” means amounts received and accounted during the period under consideration;

1.(4.128) “receipts and payments statement” means a financial statement prepared for an accounting
period to depict the changes in the financial position and to present the cash received in and paid
out in whatever form (cash, cheque, etc.) Under certain headings all non-cash and non-cheque
related transactions are ignored while preparing this statement;

1.(4.129) “reconciliation” means adjusting the difference between the two items (i.e., Amounts, balances,
accounts or statements) so that the figure agree;

1.(4.130) “report of the director, local audit” means the audit report submitted by the Director, Local
Audit (Audit Report) on the financial statements, books of accounts and transactions of the
Municipality;

1.(4.131) “revenue expenditure” means outlay benefiting only the current year. It is treated as an expense
to be matched against revenue;

1.(4.132) “secretary” means the Secretary of the Municipality appointed as such by the State Government
and/or competent authority;

1.(4.133) “short term investments” means those investments which are readily realizable, and are
intended to be held for not more than twelve months from the date of investment;

1.(4.134) “sinking fund” means a fund created for the repayment of liability or for the replacement of an
asset;

1.(4.135) “Special Fund” means an amount set aside for a specific purpose represented by specifically
earmarked assets;

1.(4.136) “straight line method (SLM)” means the method under which the periodic charge for
depreciation is computed by dividing the depreciable amount of a depreciable asset by the
estimated number of years of its useful life;

1.(4.137) “sub account” means one or more accounts that make up the Control Account. These sub-
accounts are related to the control account and provide more detail of the Control Account. The
total of the related sub-accounts will equal the related Control Account;
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1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.(4.138) “surplus” means the excess of income over expenditure of the Municipality for an accounting
period under consideration;

1.(4.139) “superintending engineer” means an engineer appointed as such by the State Government;

1.(4.140) “treasury” means a Government treasury or sub treasury or a nationalized bank or any bank
approved by the Government of Haryana in the behalf;

1.(4.141) “treasury officer” means the officer in charge of a treasury and includes a banker or person
acting as a banker with whom the municipal fund is deposited under the provisions of section 59
of the Haryana Municipal Act 1973 (24 of 1973) and the provisions of section 73 of the Haryana
Municipal Corporation Act 1994 (16 of 1994);

1.(4.142) “trial balance” means a list or abstract of the balances or total debits and total credits of the
accounts in a ledger, the purpose being to determine the equality of posted debits and credits and
to establish a basic summary needed to prepare financial statements;

1.(4.143) “useful life” means the period over which a depreciable asset is expected to be used by the
Municipality or the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the use
of the asset by the Municipality;

1.(4.144) “voucher” means a document which serves as an authorization for any financial transaction and
forms the basis for recording the accounting entry for the transaction in the books of original
entry, e.g., cash receipt/payment voucher, bank receipt/payment voucher, and voucher;

1.(4.145) “work in progress” means the process of production of goods for their sales or usage;

1.(4.146) “Written Down Value (WDV)” means the cost of acquisition or substituted value less
accumulated depreciation in respect of a fixed asset;

1.(4.147) “written down value method” means a method under which the periodic charge for
depreciation of an asset is computed by applying a fixed percentage to its historical cost or
substituted amount less accumulated depreciation (net book value). This is also referred to as
“Diminishing Balance Method”;

1.(4.148) “zonal taxation officer” means a person appointed as such by State Government responsible for
the assessment of all type of taxes levied/to be paid by a corporation such as goods and service
tax, house tax, Water Charge, and property tax, rent and advertisement, etc;

Undefined Words: Words or expressions used but not defined in this Code shall have the meaning as
assigned to them in the Act;

Working Day: Wherever in this Accounts Code, any act or proceeding is directed or allowed to be done or
taken on a certain day, then, if the office is closed on that day, the act or proceeding shall be considered as
done or taken in due time, if it is done or taken on the next day on which the office is open.

Powers: The powers conferred by this Code may be exercised by the Chief Municipal Officer or District
Municipal Commissioner or their represnetative duly authorised by them as the case may be.

Remedy for unspecified details: In the matter of details connected with accounts not provided for in this
Code, the Municipality shall comply with the instructions of the Urban Local Bodies Department and the
Director, Local Audit, Haryana:

Provided that all receipt books, tehbazari and slaughter house tickets, license forms, tax receipt forms, cattle
pound, and cattle fair receipt books shall be kept in the personal custody of the Secretary/ Superintendent/
Accountant / Head Clerk. The printed number(s) shall be noted in the stock book of forms. The number of
books or forms issued at one time shall not exceed what is required for immediate use, and no fresh issue
shall be made until completed books have been returned or otherwise accounted for. Municipality shall
maintain all such receipt and records on e-receipt or electronics format as well.

(a) figure in the accounts shall be in English characters and the case of receipt given for money, in
vernacular characters also, and in all accounts and registers in the case of Municipalities of the
first class so far possible be kept in English throughout.

(b) books of accounts, forms, and registers shall be substantially bound and paged before being
brought into use.

(c) no eraser shall be made in any accounts books register form, voucher or cheque and if any
correction has to be made, it shall be made neatly in red ink and attested by the dated initials of
the head of the department or officer concerned, or, in the case of a cheque by the signature of
the officer, signing the cheque and in the case of voucher, by the payee also.

(d) receipt/records and registers maintained on computerized system shall fulfill all compliances
related to maintenance and preservance of record.

(¢) The maintenance and upkeep of accounts/ records is the responsibility of the concerned/
authorized official of the Municipality. Head of respective branch/ department has to ensure
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that it is complying with the provisions of the Act regarding maintenance and safeguarding of
account/voucher/record.

1.9 No forms other than those prescribed in this Code shall be used by the Municipality except with the approval
of the Director, Local Audit, Haryana. However, the summon register shall be maintained by the Municipality
in the form given in the Part-II of this Code. The books of account and other relevant books, records, forms,
and papers required under this Code may be maintained in electronic mode unless otherwise required or
specified by any other applicable provisions of any Act.

1.10  The records shall not be weeded or destroyed otherwise than under the provisions of the Haryana Municipal
(Destruction of Records) Rules, 1976 or instructions issued by the state Government from time to time.

sk
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2.1

2.2

CHAPTER-2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Introduction to Accounting Policies and Principles

(@)
(b)

©

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

Accounting Policies are defined as “the specific accounting principles and the methods of applying those
principles adopted by the organization in the preparation and presentation of financial statements”.

This chapter contains a compilation of the significant accounting policies to be followed in the preparation
of the accounts of Municipalities in Haryana. These accounting policies have been prepared considering
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), pronouncements, the various relevant Accounting
Standard of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), accounting standards for Local Bodies
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), the technical guide on Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Urban Local Bodies issued by the ICAI and Comptroller and Auditor General’s report on
Urban Local Bodies.

The Financial Statements of the Municipality shall contain a Statement of significant accounting policies as
notes to accounts in respect of important Accounting Policies adopted in preparing and presenting such
information. The significant accounting policies as mentioned in this chapter shall be followed each year
consistently.

Where any of the Accounting Policies adopted by the Municipality while preparing its Financial
Statements is not in conformity with the policies prescribed in this chapter and the effect of deviation from
the Accounting Policies is material, the particulars of the deviation shall be disclosed, together with the
reasons and the financial effect thereof, except where such effect is not ascertainable. In case the financial
effect thereof is not ascertainable, either wholly or in part, the fact that it is not so ascertainable shall be
indicated. Using of any Accounting policies not provided in the code must be used only after the approval
as per Para 1.9 of this Code.

Likewise, any change in the Accounting Policies which has no material effect on the Financial Statements
for the current period, but which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later periods, the fact of
such change shall be appropriately disclosed in the Financial Statements of the period in which the change
is adopted.

The Accounting Policies shall be uniformly followed across all ‘Funds’. In case the Accounting Policies
for municipalities in Haryana are silent on certain aspects, the Accounting Policies recommended in the
National Municipal Accounts Manual shall apply.

The following Accounting Policies shall govern the recording, accounting, and treatment of transactions
relating to various activities as given below. While the Accounting Policies, in principle, apply to all
municipalities in Haryana, their applicability shall depend on the specific nature and materiality of
activities performed by the individual Municipality.

The following accounting principles shall govern the recording, accounting and treatment of transactions
relating to various activities.

Accounting Principles for Property and Other Taxes

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)

(e)
®

(2
(h)

(1)

Revenue in respect of property and other taxes shall be recognized in the period in which they become due,
and demands are ascertainable.

In case of new or changes in assessments, it shall be accrued in the month in which the demand is served;
Collections to be made on behalf of Government and included in the Property tax demand shall be
reckoned together with Property tax demand and credited to a control account called “State Government
Levies in Taxes - Control Account;

The liability towards dues to the Government for collections on its behalf shall be recognized as and when
they are collected;

Interest element and penalties, if any, in demand shall be reckoned only on receipt;

Revenue in respect of Notice Fee, Warrant Fee and Other Fees charged shall be recognized when the bills
for the same are raised.

Revenue in respect of property transfer charges shall be recognized on actual receipt;

Revenue in respect of rebate from State Government for collection made on their behalf shall be recognized
at the rates prescribed by the State Government at the time of creating the liability payable to the State
Government;

In respect of the demand outstanding beyond two (2) years, provision shall be made to the extent of income
of the Municipality in demand based on the following provisioning norms. These provisions will be created
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exclusively for the accounting purposes. Provisions made against tax and non-tax revenue will not affect the
opening/closing balances of the Demand and Collection register. The municipality shall not decrease its
efforts in collection of arrears. It shall apply to all type of provision, creation, wherever mentioned in this
Code:-

> Outstanding for more than 2 years but not exceeding 3 years: 25%

> Outstanding for more than 3 years but not exceeding 4 years:  50% (additional 25%)

> Outstanding for more than 4 years but not exceeding 5 years:  75% (additional 25%)

> Outstanding for more than 5 years : 100% (additional 25%)

(j) While making provision for receivables as stated above, the relevant proportion of State Govt. Cesses/ levies
in Property Taxes - Control account’ shall also be provided by debiting the same to a separate account;

(k) Any additional provision for demand outstanding (net on overall basis) required to be made during the year
shall be recognized as expenditure and any excess provision written back during the year shall be recognized
as income of the municipality;

(1) Refunds made and remissions of taxes for the current year shall be adjusted against the income and if
pertains to previous years, then it shall be treated as prior period item;

(m) Write-offs of taxes shall be adjusted against the provisions made and to that extent, if deemed fit by the
Government; recoverable (s) gets reduced. Any subsequent collection or recovery of Receivables for
Property and Other Taxes,” which was already written off shall be recognized as a ‘Prior Period Income’;

(n) Demands raised with retrospective effect shall be treated as prior period income to the extent it pertains to
earlier years;

(o) Part-payments received in respect of Property and Other Tax levies shall be adjusted as per applicable Act of
the State;

(p) Wherever self-assessment of taxes is prevalent, income shall be accrued based on records available with the
local body when it becomes due as per the provisions of the Haryana Municipal Acts. Further, changes
arising out of self-assessment shall be treated as ‘Change in Demand’ and shall be accounted for accordingly.

Accounting Principles for Permission Fee

(a) Income from Permission Fee shall be determined based on the provisions of the Haryana Municipal
Advertisement Bye-Laws, 2022 as amended from time to time.

(b) Advertisement income and devices has been categorized in following category:-

> Large-Format advertisement, mainly fixed on billboards/unipoles and bridges and flyover panel.
>> Advertisement mounted in public amenities like public toilets, garbage collection point etc.

>> Fleet and transport related infrastructure

> Advertisement devices for self-advertising in commercial areas;

(c) Permission fee shall be collected in advance on annual basis and shall be recognized in the period in which
they become due and demands are ascertainable;

(d) Permission Fee, in case auctioned to external agencies, shall be recognized as per the terms of agreement;

(e) Expenses regarding removal of any unauthorized advertisement or hoardings shall be recovered from the
concerned parties and are recognized on actual receipt;

Accounting principles for Cess

(a) Revenue in respect of collection of cess income with returns (on filing of returns by the dealers) shall be
recognized on actual receipt;

(b) Revenue in respect of cess income on assessment shall be recognized in the period in which they become
due, i.e. when the demand is raised;

(c) Revenue in respect of collection charges on cess, registration fee, interest and penalties levied on assessment
shall be recognized on actual receipt;

(d) In respect of the demand outstanding beyond two (2) years, provision shall be made to the extent of income
of the Municipality in the demand, based on the following provisioning norms:

>> Outstanding for more than 2 years but not exceeding 3 years 50%
> Outstanding for more than 3 years 100% (Additional 50%)

(e) Any additional provision for demand outstanding (net on overall basis) required to be made during the year
shall be recognized as expenditure and any excess provision written back during the year shall be recognized
as income of the Municipality;

(f) Refunds made and remissions of Cess for the current year shall be adjusted against the income and if it
pertains to previous years, then it shall be treated as prior period item;

(g) Write-offs of Cess shall be adjusted against the provisions made and to that extent, recoverable(s) gets
reduced;

(h) Any subsequent collection or recovery of ‘Receivables of Collection charges on Cess Income’ which were
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2.6
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already written off shall be recognized as a ‘Prior Period Income’;

(1) Demands raised with retrospective effect shall be treated as prior period income to the extent it pertains to
earlier years;

Accounting Principles for Water Supply

(a) Revenue in respect of Water Charge, Water Benefit Tax, Water Supply Charges, Water Meter Rent,
Sewerage charge and Disposal charges shall be recognized in the period in which they become due, i.c.,
when the bills are raised. It is to be noted that the Water Charges and other related taxes may also be
included in the bill raised for the property tax.

(b) Revenue in respect of Notice fee, Warrant fee, other fees shall be recognized when the bills for the same are
raised;

(c) Revenue in respect of Connection Charges for Water Supply shall be recognized on actual receipt;

(d)Revenue in respect of Water Tanker Charges and Road Damage Recovery Charges and penalties shall be
recognized on actual receipt;

(e) In respect of the demand outstanding beyond two (2) years, provision shall be made to the extent of income
of the Municipality in the demand. If Water Charges is collected as a component in Property Tax,
provisioning shall be made in the same way as un-realized Property Tax, which is as follows:-

>> Outstanding for more than 2 years but not exceeding 3 years 25%
. . 50%

> Outstanding for more than 3 years but not exceeding 4 years (Additional 25%)
. . 75%

>> Outstanding for more than 4 years but not exceeding 5 years (Additional 25%)
. 100%

> Outstanding for more than 5 years (Additional 25%)

If Water Charges demand is raised separately, the taxes and charges shall be provided for as follows:

> Outstanding for more than 2 years but not exceeding 3 years 50%
. 100%

> Outstanding for more than 3 years (Additional 50%)

Any additional provision for demand outstanding (net on overall basis) required to be made during the year
shall be recognized as expenditure and any excess provision written back during the year shall be recognized
as income of the municipality;

(f) Refunds made and remissions of taxes for the current year shall be adjusted against the income and if it
pertains to previous years, then it shall be treated as prior period item;

(g) Write-offs of taxes shall be adjusted against the provisions made and to that extent; recoverable(s) gets
reduced;

(h) Any subsequent collection or recovery of Receivables of Water Supply Income’ which are already written off,
shall be recognized as a ‘Prior Period Income”’;

Accounting principles for assigned revenues

(a) Assigned revenues like Entertainment Tax and Duty/ Surcharge on transfer of Immovable properties shall be
accounted during the year only upon actual collection. However, at year-end alone, these shall be treated as
accrued if sanction order (or proceedings) is passed and the amount is ascertained.

(b)Based on the review of recoverable position of the ‘Receivables of Assigned Revenues’, the amount of
outstanding assigned revenues to be provided or written off shall be ascertained and accounted accordingly
on obtaining the relevant approval.

Accounting principles for Rentals, Fees and Other Sources of income

(a) Revenue in respect of Advertisement rights shall be accrued either based on demand or based on the
contract.

(b)Revenue in respect of Trade License Fees shall be treated as accrued in the year to which it pertains and
where the demand is raised based on applicable Acts of the State.

(c) Revenues in respect of Profession Tax on Organizations /entities shall be treated as accrued in the year to
which it pertains and where the demand is raised based on applicable Acts of the State.

(d)Revenues in respect of rents from properties shall be treated as accrued based on terms of the agreement.

(e) Other income, in respect of which demand is ascertainable and may be raised in regular course of operations
of the Municipality, shall be recognized in the period in which they become due, i.e., when the bills are
raised.

(f) The other incomes, which are of an uncertain nature or for which the amount is not ascertainable or where
demand is not raised in regular course of operations of the Municipality, shall be recognized on actual
receipt.
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2.10

(g) Revenue in respect of notice fee, warrant fee, other fees etc. shall be recognized when the bills for the same
are raised.

(h) Interest element and penalties, if any, in demand shall be reckoned only on receipt.

(1) In respect of the demand outstanding beyond two (2) years, provision shall be made to the extent of income
of Municipality in the demand, based on the following provisioning norms:-

> Outstanding for more than 2 years but not exceeding 3 years 50%
. 100%
> Outstanding for more than 3 years (Additional 50%)

(j) Any additional provision for demand outstanding required to be made during the year shall be recognized as
expenditure and any excess provision written back during the year shall be recognized as income of the
Municipality.

(k) Refunds made and remissions of other incomes for the current year shall be adjusted against the income and
if it pertains to previous years, then it shall be treated as prior period item.

(1) Write-offs of other incomes shall be adjusted against the provisions made and to that extent, recoverable (s)
get reduced.

(m) Any subsequent collection or recovery of receivables of rental, fees and other incomes’ which were already
written off in earlier year shall be recognized as a ‘prior period income’.

Accounting principles for Public Works/ Municipal Works

() The cost of fixed assets shall include cost incurred / money spent in acquiring or installing or constructing
fixed asset, interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifying fixed assets upto
the date of commissioning of the assets and other incidental expenses incurred up to that date;

(b) Any addition to or improvement to the fixed asset that results in increasing the utility or capacity or useful
life of the asset shall be capitalized and included in the cost of asset. Revenue expenditure in the nature of
repairs and maintenance incurred to maintain the asset and sustain its functioning or the benefit of which is
for less than a year, shall be charged off;

(c) Assets under erection/installation on existing projects and capital expenditures on new projects (including
advances for capital works and project stores) shall be shown as “Capital Work-In-Progress”. The earnest
money deposit and security deposit received, if forfeited, shall be recognized as income when the right for
claiming refund of deposit has expired;

(d) Deposit received under deposit works shall be treated as a liability till such time the projects for which
money is received is completed. Upon completion of the projects, the cost incurred against it shall be
reduced from the liability;

(e) Revenues (percentage charges) in respect of deposit works shall be treated as accrued along-with expenditure
of deposit works;

Accounting principles for stores

(a) Expenditure in respect of material, equipment, etc., procured shall be recognized on accrual basis, i.e., on
admission of bill by the Municipality in relation to materials, equipment, etc., delivered;

(b) Accounting of ‘goods received and accepted but no bills received’ as at the cutoff date shall be accounted for
based on purchase orders;

(c) The stock lying at the period-end shall be valued at cost in accordance with the first in—first out (FIFO)
method,

(d)Revenue in respect of disposal of material shall be recognized on actual receipt;

(e) Finished goods and work-in progress related to production produced for sale shall be valued at cost. Cost of
finished and work-in-progress includes all direct costs and applicable production over heads to bring the
goods to the present location and condition;

Accounting Principles for Employee Related Transactions

(a) Expenses on Salaries and other allowances shall be recognized as and when they are due for payment (i.e. on
first working day of next month);

(b) Statutory deductions from salaries including those for income tax, profession tax, provident fund
contribution, etc., shall be recognized as liability in the same period in which the corresponding salary is
recognized as an expense;

(c) Provident Funds money shall be invested as per the guidelines applicable to any Employee Provident Fund,;

(d) Separate Funds may also be formed for meeting the pension and other retirement benefits including Gratuity
and Leave encashment. State Government shall decide on this and define the modus-operandi also. State
may form trusts either at the State level or at the Municipal level;

(e) Contribution due towards pension and other retirement benefit funds shall be recognized as an expense and
also as a liability;
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(f) Interest receivable on loans given to employees shall be recognized as revenue at the end of the period in
which these have accrued;

(g)In respect of loans to employees, penal interest leviable on default in repayment of principal or payment
towards interest shall be recognized on accrual basis;

(h)Bonus, ex-gratia, over time allowance, other allowances and reimbursements to the employees shall be
recognized as an expense as and when they are due for payment;

Accounting principles for health and sanitation

(a) Revenue in respect of the following shall be recognized on actual receipt: -

» Hospital fees, maternity homes fees, diagnostic center fees and dispensaries fees.

> Hospital training fees.

> Rent and/or hire charges in respect of ambulance suction unit, meat van and road roller etc.
> Sale of fertilizers and waste, sale of animals and sale of scrap.

(b)Revenue in respect of Trade License Fees shall be treated as accrued in the year to which it pertains and
where the demand is raised based on applicable Acts of the State.

(c) Revenue in respect of rent of equipment provided to the contractors, deducted from their bills, shall be
recognized as and when the deductions are made.

(d) All revenue expenditures incurred shall be recognized on admission of the bills for payment by the
Municipality.

(e) Provision shall be made at the year-end for all bills received.

Accounting principles for other revenue expenditures

(@) Other revenue expenditures shall be treated as expenditures in the period in which they are incurred,;

(b) Provisions shall be made at the year-end for all bills received up-to a cut off date;

(c) Any expenditure for which the payment has been made in the current period but the benefit and/or service is
likely to arise in a future period shall be treated as an expenditure for the period in which its benefit arises
and/or services are received;

(d) The expenditure for the current period shall include the proportionate value of the benefits and/ or services
arising in the current period even if the payment here of has been made in the previous period.

Accounting principles for grants

() General grants, which are of a revenue nature, shall be recognized as incomes on actual receipt.

(b) Grants towards revenue expenditure, received prior to the incurrence of the expenditure, shall be treated as a
liability till such time that the expenditure is incurred;

(c) Grants received or receivable in respect of specific revenue expenditure shall be recognized as income in the
accounting period in which the corresponding revenue expenditure is charged to the income and expenditure
account;

(d) Grants received towards capital expenditure shall be treated as a liability till such time that the fixed asset is
constructed or acquired. On construction/acquisition of a fixed asset out of the grants so received, the extent
of liability corresponding to the value of the asset so constructed/acquired shall stand reduced and the amount
shall be treated as a capital receipt and shall be transferred from the respective specific grant account to the
Capital Reserve;

(e) Capital Grants received as a nodal agency or as implementing agency for an intended purpose, which does
not, result in creation of assets with ownership rights for the Municipality shall be treated as a liability till
such time it is used for the intended purpose. Upon utilization for the intended purpose, the extent of liability
shall stand reduced with the value of such utilization and no further treatment, as a capital receipt shall be
required,;

(f) Grants in the form of non-monetary assets (such as fixed assets given at a concessional rate) shall be
accounted for on the basis of the acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary asset is received free of cost, it
shall be recorded at a nominal value (e.g. Rupee One);

(g) Income on investments made from ‘Specific Grants received in advance’ shall be recognized and credited to
the Specific Grant, whenever accrued. Profit /loss, if any, arising on disposal of investments made from the
‘Specific Grant received in advance’ shall also be recognized and credited/debited to the Specific Grant.

Accounting principles for borrowings or loans received

(a) Interest expenditure on loan shall be recognized on accrual basis.

(b) Interest on borrowings directly attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifying fixed assets up to the
date of commissioning of the assets shall be capitalized,

(c) A provision shall be made for the interest accrued between the date of last payment of interest and the date
of financial statements and shall be charged to the current period’s Income and Expenditure Statement;

(d) The expenses incurred while issuing debentures or Bonds (Issue Expenses) shall be deferred and amortized
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in equal instalments over a period of 5 years or the tenure of the loan whichever is earlier. In case, the
debentures and bonds are prematurely redeemed, the amount of issue expenses outstanding during the year
shall be written-off and charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement as expense of the year when this
happens. However, all other expenses in respect of raising loans other than those considered, as issue
expenses shall be expensed off in the year in which they are incurred;

Accounting principles for special funds

(a) Special funds shall be treated as a liability on their creation;

(b) Income on investments made from special fund shall be recognized and credited to special fund, whenever
accrued. Profit/loss, if any, arising on disposal of investments made from the special fund shall be recognized
and credited/debited to special fund account;

(c) Any expenditure of a revenue nature, which is incurred specifically on scheme/project for which a special
fund has been created, shall be charged to that special fund,

(d) On completion of the construction of a fixed asset and/or on acquisition of a fixed asset out of a special fund,
the amount equivalent to the cost of such fixed asset shall be transferred from the respective special fund to
the special fund (utilized).

Accounting principles for investments

() Investment shall be recognized at cost of investment. The cost of investment shall include cost incurred in
acquiring investment and other incidental expenses incurred for its acquisition;

(b) All long-term investments shall be carried /stated in the books of accounts at their cost. However, in the
event of any permanent diminution in their value as on the date of balance sheet, these shall be provided for;

(c) Short-term investments shall be carried/stated at their cost or market value (If quoted) whichever is lower;

(d) Interest on investments shall be recognized as and when due. At period-ends, interest shall be treated as
accrued proportionately;

(e) Dividend on investments shall be recognized on actual receipt;

(f) Profit/loss, if any, arising on disposal of investment (net of selling expense such as commission, brokerage,
etc.) from the Municipal Fund shall be recognized in the year when such disposal takes place;

(g) Income on investments made from special fund and grants under specific scheme shall be recognized and
credited to special fund and grants under specific scheme respectively, whenever accrued. Profit/loss, if any,
arising on disposal of investments (net of selling expense such as commission, brokerage, etc.) made from
the special fund and grants under specific scheme shall be recognized and credited/debited to special fund
account and grant under specific scheme account respectively. However, interest or gains from an investment
made from grants received as reimbursements, shall be credited to Municipal/General fund of the
Municipality instead of the grant account.

Accounting Principles for Fixed Assets

(a) All fixed assets shall be carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets shall include
cost incurred/money spent in acquiring or installing or constructing fixed asset, interest on borrowings
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifying fixed assets upto the date of commissioning
of the assets and other incidental and indirect expenses incurred upto that month;

(b) Any addition to or improvement to the fixed asset that results in increasing the utility or useful life of the
asset shall be capitalized and included in the cost of fixed asset;

(c) Any fixed asset, which has been acquired free of cost or in respect of which no payment has been made,
shall be recorded at nominal value of X 1/- or fair value of assets;

(d) All assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 (Rupees Five thousands) shall be expensed/charged to Income and
Expenditure Account in the year of purchase;

(e) An increase in net book value arising on revaluation shall be credited to a reserve account under the
municipal fund as ‘Revaluation Reserve Account’. A decrease in net book value arising on revaluation of
fixed assets is charged to Income and Expenditure accounts;

(f) Revaluation of a class of assets shall not result in the net book value of that class being greater than the
recoverable amount of the assets of that class;

(g)Revaluation reserve shall be reduced by transfer of equivalent amount of depreciation charged on the
revalued portion of the cost of the fixed assets;

(h) Depreciation shall be provided at the rates prescribed by the State. Depreciation on all fixed assets is to be
provided consistently on either written down value or straight-line method,

(i) Depreciation shall be provided at full rates for assets, which are purchased/constructed/ obtained/acquired
before October 1 of an accounting year. Depreciation shall be provided at half the rates for assets, which are
purchased/constructed on or after October 1 of an accounting year;

(j) Depreciation shall be provided at full rates for assets, which are disposed on or after October 1 of an
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accounting year. Depreciation shall be provided at half the rates for assets, which are disposed before
October 1 of an accounting year;

(k) Assets recorded in the register but not physically available shall be written off after a specified period as
defined by the State/Municipal Act or rules governing the Municipality. The authority levels for the
respective State/Municipal Act or Rule shall also define authorizing the write off.

Accounting principles for lease and hire purchase

(2) Finance lease in the books of lessee at the commencement of the lease term: Finance leases shall be
recorded as an asset and a liability. Such recognition shall be at an amount equal to the cost. Finance lease
payments shall be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge shall be allocated as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each of the period. Depreciation on such assets shall be provided at the same rates as in
case of owned assets;

(b) Operating lease in the books of lessor

Assets given under operating lease shall be accounted as own assets in the same manner similar to any other
fixed assets owned and used by the Municipality. Lease income from operating leases shall be recognized as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease income shall be accrued on the respective due
dates. Any amount incurred that results in improvement or increase of the useful life of the assets under
operating lease shall be capitalized as like any other asset used by the Municipality for its own operations;
Depreciation on such assets shall be provided at the same rates as in case of owned assets;

(c) Hire purchase in the books of buyer

The purchase price shall be capitalized as the cost of fixed assets. Hire Purchase (HP) instalments shall be
apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the principal outstanding. The finance charge
shall be allocated so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability; the total amount of interest portion out of the ‘HP Payable’ shall be accounted by debiting to a
control account under current assets. This amount shall be adjusted on accounting of finance charges. The
depreciation principle for assets purchased under HP shall be consistent with that for owned assets;

(d) Hire purchase in the books of seller

The sale price (including the interest portion) shall be accounted as receivable from HP agreement; HP
instalments shall be apportioned between the interest income and the reduction of the principal amount
receivable (the finance income to be allocated so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the receivable). The total amount of interest portion out of the ‘HP receivable’ shall be
accounted by crediting to a control account under current assets. This amount shall be adjusted while
accounting for finance charges;

Accounting principles for loans

(a) Interest/penal interest on loans shall be recognized as and when due. At period-ends, interest shall be accrued
upto the date of the period-end;

(b) Interest/penal interest earned on loans given out of specific fund/grant shall be directly credited to the
specific fund/grant account;

(c) Provision against bad and doubtful loans shall be made according to the provisioning principle of the
Municipality based on norms or guidelines issued by the State Government in this regard.

(d) Any additional provision for loans outstanding (net on overall basis) required to be made during the year
shall be recognized as expenditure and any excess provision written back during the year shall be recognized
as income of the municipality;

(e) Write-offs of bad and doubtful loans shall be adjusted against the provisions made and to that extent, loan
outstanding get reduced. In case of inadequate provisions, the write off shall be recognized as expenditure.

Accounting principles for addition/merger of local bodies for up-gradation

() The financial statements of the merging local bodies shall be consolidated at the cut-off dates under the
pooling of interest method. The assets, liabilities, reserves and fund balances of the merging local bodies are
recorded at their existing carrying amounts. However, it must be ensured that accounting principles adopted
for preparation of financial statements of merging local bodies shall be same.

(b) The financial statements prepared on consolidation shall disclose-

Names of the local bodies merged.

Authority under which the merger has taken place.

Effective date of merger.

Principles adopted for consolidation.

VVVY
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2.21

2.22

2.23

Accounting principles for Inter Unit Transactions

() All inter unit transactions shall be recorded on cost basis and no mark up shall be included in inter unit
transactions.

(b) At the year-end, the inter-unit accounts are knocked off/ adjusted in the consolidated accounts of the
Municipality.

Accounting principles for municipal schools

(a) Fees and fines received from primary/secondary schools shall be recognized on actual receipt;

(b) Contribution receivable from other local bodies/ Municipalities/ Government shall be recognized in the
period in which they become due.

Accounting principles for municipal transport

(a) Revenue in respect of ticket charges and monthly passes shall be recognized on actual receipt;

(b) Payments to be made by the Transport Undertaking to the Municipal Fund shall be accounted on actual

payment.
skkok
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CHAPTER-3

CHART OF ACCOUNTS

Meaning
A Chart of Accounts (CoA) is a listing of all account heads. Each account is denoted by an account name
and a reference number. The account name is known as the “account head”, and the reference number is
known as the “account code”. The chart of accounts groups accounts of a similar nature into groups and
sub-groups at different levels (major heads, minor heads and detailed heads with accompanying codes).
The number of levels and the length of the account codes depend on the requirements of the organization.
Chart of Accounts (CoA) defines the heads under which the transactions of local bodies are classified and
facilitates maintenance of accounts and preparation of financial statements. A well-designed CoA shall not
only fulfill accounting requirements but also the Budgeting and MIS requirements and shall be flexible
enough to consolidate and collate to facilitate generation of various information reports.
Benefits of Chart of Accounts
The CoA is of great help to the accountant in identifying the appropriate account heads for passing an entry
for a financial transaction. It also provides uniformity of accounting and reporting financial transactions. A
common understanding and usage of the account heads facilitates not only a comparison over different
time periods, but also comparison across different Municipalities.
Codification Logic and Structure
The codification structure proposed facilitates capture of all type of financial information within a
Municipality, which are essential in a government set-up. Each type of classification is considered as a
group. Considering the capacity and size of local bodies to which this Code pertains and the minimum
requirements of various stakeholders’ certain mandatory information’s are prescribed. The mandatory
groups for all local bodies are:

» Functions

» Account Heads
Functions shall represent the various functions or services carried out by the Municipality. Account Heads
shall represent the nature of the income, expenditure, liability or asset. Budgets in Municipalities are
cantered on its functions. Functions are provided through various responsibility Centres called Branches.
Geographical dispersion of these activities may also be monitored, more so in the context of Wards, Wards
Committees and other decentralization measures. Municipalities shall identify its income and expenditure
budgets at function, functionary and field level.
Funds set up for meeting of certain specific objectives shall be identified separate fund. Income and
expenditure under these funds are to be identified and disclosed separately. However, the method of
disclosure may be different. When they adopt the integral concept, separate books of accounts are not
maintained for the funds. Identity is created by providing separate account heads to capture the income and
expenditure for each such fund. In some Municipalities, separate books of accounts and financial
statements are maintained considering it as a separate accounting entity. In such cases, the identity of the
fund (entity) is required as an additional classification.
Thus, in addition, there shall be three other optional groups apart from the mandatory groups of Function
and Account Head:-

»  Functionality (Responsibility Centre/Branch)

» Field (Geographical Centre)

» Fund
In all, there may be five groups, Function, Account Head Functionary, Field and Fund. Function,
Functionary and Field are called Budgeting centers. Each group may have various levels within it to drill
down further information. The levels even in the mandatory groups may be either mandatory or optional,
based on the requirements. First level in Function and Account Head are mandatory for all Municipalities
and other levels will be decided by the States Government. It shall mean that all Municipalities shall have
to use the Function Codes and Account Codes as defined in this Code only. Similarly, the Municipalities
which have decentralized accounting zones/circles etc. and prepare budgets at these levels, shall have to
use the field group as mandatory.
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An overview of the suggested structure for mandatory information and overall structure is provided as
below:

Mandatory Structure

l | |
Budget Center Accounts Subject
(Function) (Account Head)

Source Fund

3.4  Components of Charts of Accounts
3.4.1 Functions of the Municipality may have three levels within it. First level under this group shall
represent various functions both obligatory and discretionary. Second Level of functions shall
represent the particular type of service under a function and third level shall represent a particular cost
Centre, which provides the service. The first level of functions /codes is mandatory for all
Municipalities. All functions of the Municipalities are broadly classified under ten major groups.
Within this, long listing of functions has been made. These functions are fitted with in the group with
each group having flexibility to go upto nine sub functions. The detailed codes for each of the
functions as referred above is defined and given as Appendix 1 to this Code, which has been annexed
to this chapter.
3.4.2 Accounting subjects shall be divided into two levels Primary and Secondary. Primary account code
represents the subject of the income and expenditure.
(a) Primary Account Codes: The Code of an Account Head shall be numeric and shall be ten digits.
A ten-digit code is suggested to give flexibility to add new codes and to define certain of its
unique requirements. The code is structured into:
() Major head code;
(i1) Minor head code;
(iii) Sub-Minor head code; and
(iv) Detailed head code.
The combination of major, minor and detailed head codes is shown as below. As may be seen
from the figure, the composite account code is a 10-digit combination of the major, minor and
detailed codes.

Figure: Coding Logic

1 2 3 4 5 { ’ ! ’
MINOR DETAILE
CODE D CODE

i. Major Head Code:

(a) The First Digit of the major head code shall indicate the nature or type of the account. The
first digit shall be assigned one of the following numbers depending on the nature of the
account:

» ‘1'shall denote an account relating to 'Revenue Income'
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» '2'shall denote an account relating to ‘Revenue Expenditure’
> '3' shall denote an account relating to 'Capital Receipts and Liabilities'.
> '4' shall denote an account relating to 'Capital Expenditure and Assets'.
(b)The next 2 digits of the major head code shall denote the group codes for the various head of
accounts. For example :-
» Codel-10 shall denote ‘Tax Revenue’ related accounts;
» Code 2-10 shall denote ‘Establishment Expenses’ related accounts;
» Code 3-10 shall denote ‘Other Liabilities’ related accounts;
» Code 4-10 shall denote ‘Fixed Assets’ related accounts.

It is to be noted that the financial statements of a Municipality are drawn at Major Head codes of

account and hence this is a mandatory level of information. No major code addition is likely to

happen, as this format is the final one. In case the same is required, it has to be approved by the

Municipality at national level only.

ii. Minor Head Code:

(1) The minor head code shall be of 2 digits. An item covered by a minor head code is a subset of
the major head code. Thus, it shall be necessary to refer the minor head code in conjunction
with the associated major head code.

(2) The minor head code provides further details of transactions in respect of the major head code
it is associated with. For example:

» Under the major head code 110 relating to ‘Tax Revenue’, the minor head code 01 shall
denote ‘Property Tax’.

> Under the major head code 210 relating to ‘Establishment Expenses’, them in or head code
10 shall denote “Salaries and Allowances”.

> Under the major head code 310 relating to ‘Other Liabilities’, the minor head code 10 shall
denote ‘Creditors’.

> Under the major head code 410 relating to ‘Fixed Assets’, the minor head code 20 shall
denote ‘Buildings’.

(3) The schedules to financial statements of a Municipality are drawn at minor head codes of
account and hence this is a mandatory level of information. Minor codes provided in the code
are mandatory. Additions to minor codes may be made by the State Government. In
accordance with the provisions contained in para 3.9 (e) below Minor Code, a three-digit
Sub Minor Code above Detailed Head has been inserted in Chart of Accounts.

iii. Sub-Minor Head Code

(1) The sub-minor head code shall be of 3 digits. An item covered by a sub-minor head code is a
subset of the minor head code. Thus, it shall be necessary to refer the sub-minor head code in
conjunction with the associated minor head code.

(2) The sub-minor head code provides further details of transactions in respect of the minor head
code it is associated with.

iv. Detailed Head Code
(1) The detailed head code shall be of 2 digits. An item covered by a detailed head code is a
subset of the minor head code. Thus, it shall be necessary to refer the detailed head code
in conjunction with the associated minor head code.
(2) The detailed head code provides further details of transactions in respect of the minor head
code it is associated with. For example,

(1) Under the minor head code of account 110-01 covering Property Tax, the detailed
head code 01 shall denote ‘Property Tax from Residential Properties’. Thus, under the
minor head code of account 110-01 in respect of ‘Tax Revenues from Property Tax’,
the detailed head code 01 shall represent ‘Property Tax from Residential Properties’.
The account code for this shall be 110-01-01.

(i1) Under the minor head code of account 210-10 covering ‘Establishment Expenses under
Salaries, Wages and Bonus, the detailed head code 01 shall denote ‘Salaries and
Allowances — Officers’.

(iii) Under the minor head code of account 350-10 covering Creditors, the detailed head code
01 shall denote ‘Suppliers Control Accounts’.

(iv) Under the minor head code of Account 410-20 covering Buildings, the detailed head
code 01 shall denote ‘Office Buildings’.

(3) The minor and detailed codes identified by the Department of Urban Local Bodies, Haryana.

Municipalities are allowed to add new minor codes with prior approval from State



HARYANA GOVT. GAZ., MAY 27, 2025 (JYST. 6, 1947 SAKA) 2341

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Government and detailed heads may be added with the prior approval of Director, Urban
Local Bodies, Haryana. A listing of minor and detailed codes under major code is listed in
Appendix 2 to this Code.
(b) Secondary Account Code:
This is optional and shall depend on requirements of a municipality. These shall typically represent
the subsidiary ledgers and other analysis ledgers. Hence, no codification structure has been
proposed for the same.

Funds
3.5.1 Depending on requirements, levels may be introduced. Funds may have sub-level within it. The
codification structure for the funds may consist of the following:
»  major fund; and
»  minor fund.
3.5.2 Major Fund code shall represent the broad categorization of Funds and minor Fund within it represents a
particular Fund.
3.5.3 The code of a fund shall be numeric and may be of 4 digits. The structure of the code for fund is
schematically presented below:
| [ =  Major Fund Code (2)
[ = Minor Fund Code (3)

A PR, —
i \ f )
% | [=
1 2 3 4
For example, Employee funds may be a major fund and Pension fund may be minor fund
within that.

Functionary
In the government set-up, demands for expenditure are drawn by the department discharging the functions and
become the responsibility center for the assigned functions. Functionary group represents this. Each sub-level
within this group typically shall represent the organizational structure within the Municipality. This level is
used only for the internal control of the Municipality. It is, therefore, not proposed to prescribe any codification
structure for the same.
Field
Field represents the way the Municipalities are aligned geographically. Sub- levels in this group shall be
based on the territorial hierarchy. Number of digits at each level may range from 1-3 depending on the size of
the local body. This is different from accounting unit as explained under the overview section of this chapter.
Field represents the area to which the expenditure or payment relates. Location or accounting unit represents
the unit at which it is accounted. This level is needed only for the internal control of the Municipality. It is,
therefore, not proposed to prescribe any codification structure for the same.
Municipality Code
To facilitate State level aggregation, each Municipality shall be assigned a Code. This code shall represent the
State to which it is attached and the unique Code assigned by the State. This shall be in the following format:
STATE - DISTRICT —-CATEGORY- CODE
(Category shall represent the way Local Bodies are classified within the State e.g. Municipalities)
General Guidelines and Instructions for Usage of Chart of Accounts
The following guidelines shall be followed while using the chart of accounts:
(a) Function codes, major and minor head codes given in the Code shall apply uniformly to all Urban Local
Bodies.
(b) The Codes may be changed after obtaining the necessary approval from the Urban Local Bodies,
Haryana for each type of Code.
(c) No major code addition is likely to happen as this format is more or less the final one. In case the same
is required, it has to be approved by the national level committee only.
(d) Municipalities shall identify the operative detailed heads, with the same description and code number
for accounting purposes. These heads shall be commonly used in all the Municipalities within a
State. Detailed heads unique to a particular Municipality shall also be added with the approval of the
State Government.
(e) Some Municipalities may have further break up in their activities requiring sub- heads at a level above
Detailed Heads. Municipalities shall induct sub- heads under minor head and thereafter, detailed
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heads shall be suitably opened, with the approval of State Government.

(f) The Accounts Branch shall maintain a master index of all the Code of Accounts being utilized by the
Municipal Body.

(g) Ledger Accounts corresponding to the Accounting Codes need to be opened by a Municipality only in
respect of those transactions which arise at that Municipality. Thus, all the Account Codes given in
this report shall not be used byevery Municipality.

3.10 Change Request Form

3.11

This Form shall be used by Municipalities for sending their requests to Urban Local Bodies Department or any
other authority as may be authorized by Urban Local Bodies Department for any addition/ change in the
accounting codes. A format of Change Request Form has been provided in Part-II of this Accounts Code.

Change Authorized Form
This form shall be used by the Urban Local Bodies Department, or any other authority as may be authorized by

Urban Local Bodies Department, to authorize the change requested by Municipalities. Format of the same has
been provided in the Part-II of this Accounts Code.
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Chart of Accounts
(a) Function Codes Appendix-1 (See clause 3.4.1)
LuncyLe T Function Descriptions
Group Group Code P

0 General Administration

Municipal Body (For ex-Mayor, President, Chief Municipal Officer etc.)

Administration (For ex. General Admin, Public Relation etc.)

Finance, Accounts, Audit

Election

Record Room

Estate

Stores and Purchase

Workshop

Census

Planning and Regulations

City and Town Planning

Building Regulation

Economic Planning

Encroachment Removal

Trade License/Regulations

Public Works

Roads and Pavement

Bridges and Flyovers

Subways and Causeways

Street Lighting

Storm water Drains

Traffic Signals

Guest Houses

Health

Public Health (For ex. Immunization, Polio)

Epidemic/Prevention Control (For ex. Malaria Control)

Family Planning

Primary Health Care

Hospital Services

Burial and Cremations

Vital Statistics

Prevention of Food Adulteration

Ambulance/Hearse Services

Sanitation and Solid Waste Management

Solid Waste Management

Public Convenience

Veterinary Services

Cattle Pounding

Slaughter Houses

Civic Amenities

Water Supply

Sewerage

Fire Services

Arts and Culture

Community/Marriage Centers

Wt [R|ARR|ARRIA|WWIWIWIW[IWIWIWIWIW I[NNI (== (===~ |O(O|o |00 |0 |00 |0
(=}l le] e} [e) e}l (o] o} (el =l (o] il [l o] (o} fo) [} fo) o} fo] o} fu ) fo} o} ol (o} e M=l l=] Il (o) fo ) [al o) [el Rl [l [l el [l [l [el fa) Fal Fal N
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Amusement
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Museums

Municipal Markets

Urban Forestry

Parks, Gardens

Play Grounds

Lakes and Ponds

Urban Forestry

Environment Conservation

Z00s

Urban Poverty Alleviation and Social Welfare

Welfare of Woman

Welfare of Children

Welfare of Aged

Welfare of Handicapped

Welfare of SC/ST/OBC

Slum Improvements

Housing

Urban Poverty Alleviation

Others

Other Services

Electricity

Education

Transportation

Facility for pilgrims

Revenues

Property Taxes

Octroi/Entry Cess

Permission Fee

Professional Tax

Tax on Animals

Tax on Vehicles

Toll

N=J N} N} INo} NoJ INo} (No )N INoJ iV Kool He ol fe R Io R Ie N ENEENEENEENEENEENEENEENEENE RN o N [o ¥ o | [o ¥ o N Fo N Ko Q) RO, | R0/ |
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Other Taxes
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(b) Primary Accounting Heads — Revenue Income

Major
Code

Appendix-2_(See clause 3.4.2 (A) (iv) (3))

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
|

Detail
Code

Description

Property Tax

Property tax from Residential buildings

Property tax from Commercial buildings

Property tax on Vacant Land

Property tax on Institutional Building

Property tax on Religious Building

—_— = === = |~

— == ===~

— == === |~ =

Property tax on State Government buildings

—

—

—_—

Service charges in Lieu of Property tax on Central
government Buildings

Property tax on the Closed and Sick industries

Property tax on industries under litigation

Surcharge on Property tax

Interest on Property tax

Sewerage tax

Sewerage Tax

Conservancy tax / Latrine tax

Conservancy tax/ Latrine tax

Lighting tax

Lighting tax

Education tax

Education tax

Vehicle tax

Vehicle tax

Tax on Animals

Tax on Animals

Electricity tax

Electricity tax

Professional tax

Professional tax

Pilgrimage tax

Pilgrimage tax

Show tax

Show Tax

Tax on Boat

Tax on Boat

Tax on Dogs

Tax on Dogs

I~ =~ =~ =~ =~ =~~~ ]~~~ |~~~ ]|~]=]=]|~=]|]~

~ = ~=~— ]~ ~]=~]=]~]— |~~~ ]|~]=|~]=]~]|=]|~=]=]|~
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Fire Tax

Fire Tax (Presentlly not a part of the Municipal
Receipt)
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Sanitation Tax
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Major Minor Sub Minor Detail Derchnon

Code Code Code Code
1|1 ]10f 1 71010 0f 0 1 | Sanitation Tax
1|10 I §1010 0] 0 0 | General Tax
11101 81 0] 0 0f 0 1 | General Tax
1 (1|0 I 910 1|0 0f 0 0 | Development Tax
1]1]10]f 1 910 | 0 0f 0 1 | Development Tax

ol 2 ol ol o ol o 0 Duty on transfer of immovable property if not

collected on assigned revenue basis

—

—_

=

—

Duty on transfer of immovable property if not
collected on assigned revenue

Tax on Driving Licensee

Tax on Driving Licensee

Octroi and toll

Octroi and toll

Charges on Collection of Cess

Education Cess

Employment Cess

Health Cess

Other Taxes

Tax on Carriage and Carts

Building tax

Drainage tax

Special sanitary tax

Cycle Tax

Terminal Tax

Tax Remissions and Refunds

Property Tax

Property tax from Residential buildings

Property tax from Commercial buildings

Property tax on Vacant Land

Property tax on Institutional Buildings

Property tax on Religious Buildings

— = == =] ==~ =]=]=]=]~]=]~]<]=<]~]~]—=]~]~ ]~
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Property tax on State Government buildings
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Service charges in Lieu of Property tax on Central
government Buildings

Property tax on the Closed and Sick industries

Property tax on industries under litigation

Surcharge on Property tax

Interest on Property tax

Other Revenues Tax Remissions and Refunds

Sewerage Tax

Conservancy Tax /Latrine Tax

Lighting tax

Education Tax

Vehicle Tax

Tax on Animals
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Electricity Tax
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Major Minor Sub Minor Detail Dewedipten
Code Code Code Code
1110 9 (2 O 0] 210 8 | Professional Tax
1110 9 (U IO () 21 0 9 | Pilgrimage Tax
11110 9 (V2 IV () 21 1 0 | Octroi and toll
11110 9 01010 21 1 1 | Other Taxes
| | D | O | | | | gned Revenues and Compensatio
120 1 0f01]0 0| 0 0 | Taxes and Duties Collected by others
112]10( 1 01010 0] 0 1 | Stamp Duty Share
11210 1 (2 O () 0 O 2 | Motor/Vehicle Tax
112]0f 1 01010 0] 0 3 | Fee on Transfer of Property
11210 1 01010 0] 0 4 | Entertainment Tax
11210 1 o0 | O 0 O 5 | State Share of GST
11210 1 o0 | O 0 O 6 | Collection Charges of Cess on GST
11210 1 o0 | O 0 O 7 | Electricity Consumption Charges/User Charges
11210l 1 ol ol o ol o 3 ti);lll:i(;l"g)r::/Charges as recommended by Govt. from
1120} 2 0010 0| 0 0 | Compensation in lieu of Taxes/Duties
1210 2 (2 IO 0] 0 O 1 | Compensation in lieu of Octroi
11210 2 o0 | O 0 O 2 | Compensation in lieu of Electricity
120 3 0f01]0 0 0 0 | Compensation in lieu of Concessions
11210l 3 ol ol o ol o | Propc.erty Tax compensations due to concessions
certain taxpayers
| | | | | | | | Renta ome fro pal prope
1 {310 I 01010 0] 0 0 | Rent From Civic Amenities
113]0] 1 (U IO 0] 0] 0 1 | Rent from Markets
113]0]f 1 01010 0] 0 2 | Rent from Shopping Complexes
113]0] 1 (U IO () 0 O 3 | Rent from Auditoriums
113]0] 1 (2 IO 0] 0 O 4 | Rent from Art Galleries
113lol 1 ol ol o ol o 5 ie;‘;arlslncome from Marriage halls, community
113]0]( 1 (O IV () 0f O 6 | Rental Income from Playgrounds
113]0] 1 (O IV () 0f O 7 | Rental Income from Nurseries
113]0] 1 (2 IO 0] 0 O 8 | Rental Income from Others
1130} 2 0010 0| 0 0 | Rent from office Buildings
11310 2 o0 | O 0 O 1 | Rent from employee quarters
11310 2 (O IO () 0 O 2 | Rent from Office Building — Others
1 {310 3 01010 0] 0 0 | Rent from Guest Houses
113]0( 3 01010 0] 0 1 | Rent from Guest Houses
113(0] 4 0f0]0 0| 0 0 | Rent from lease of Lands
1]13]|]0( 4 o0 | O 0 O 1 | Rent from lease of Lands — Lump-sum
113]10( 4 o0 | O 0 O 2 | Rent from lease of Lands — Installments
1130 4 01010 0] 0 3 | From Development Authorities
1130 8 0f01]0 0 0 0 | Other Rents
1130 8 0[O0 | O 0 0 1 | Lease income from leasing out parking place
1130 9 0010 0| 0 0 | Rent remission and refunds
11310 9 0[O0 | O 0 0O 1 | Rent From Civic Amenities
11310 9 O[O0 | O 0f O 2 | Rent From office Buildings
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Major
Code

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
0

Detail
Code

Description

Rent From Guest Houses

0

Rent from lease of Lands

S|l

—H O | \© | \©
(= Rl N

S| |

0

S|l |

S|l

3
4
5

Other Rents

Empanelment and Registration Charges

Registration of Carts

Registration of Contractors

Registration of patients

Registration of Professionals/Enlistment Fees

Registration of Municipal Works contractors

Cess Registration

Registration Charges for school

Registration on Dogs

Licensing Fees

Licensing Fees for Slaughtering

Licensing Fees for Butchers and Traders of meat

Licensing Fees for Poultry

Licensing Fees for Cattle Pounding

— == ==~ === ]|=]=]|=]|=]~=]~

ol Bl Il el I B Kl Kl Nl el el el enly el o

Licensing Fees for Bazaars — Cattle Fair

—

—_
—

Licensing Fees for Prevention of food and adulteration
act and rules

Licensing Fees for Hawkers

Licensing Fees for Shops

Licensing Fees for Plumbing

Licensing Fees for Fish Monger

Licensing Fees for Hotels

Licensing Fees for Cinema Halls

—_— == === ]|~

—_— === ===
—_— === —_ ===

=l Bl Bl el =2 B=2 k=2 B =R Rl E=l fol Fol el Bl fel ol fol Fol ol Fol ol Foll Bul O
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Licensing Fees for Clinics

—_

[—
—

—
N

Licensing Fees for use of premises for non-residential
purposes

Licensing Fee for Offensive and Dangerous Trades

Licensing Fee for Others

Fees for Grant of Permit

Construction of Building

Transits Permit

Escort Permit

Lay-out permit

Sub-division permit fees

Plan Sanction fees

Fees for Certificate or Extract

Fees for Copying

Fee for Birth and Death Certificate

Fees for Occupancy Certificates

Fees for Certificates-Others

Development Charges

—_ i~ === ]=l~]=]=]|=]=]|=]=]|~]~]|—=
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Development fees
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2349

Major
Code

~

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
0

Detail
Code

Description

Betterment fees

Demolition Charges

Open space contribution fees

Parking fees

Site Clearance Fees

Vacant Site Service Charge

Regularization Fees

Encroachment fees

Regularization of constructed building

Regularization of constructed kachi basti

Conversion fees Agriculture land

— ===~~~ ]~=|~|~]|~

— ==~~~ ]|~]|~]|~]|~]|~

(O VL O, IO T UL T O B S B S B N B B

Nl |WIND|I— IS ||l |wW]|N

Regularizations Fees — Others

—_—

RN N SN I SN SN S B NG B e N N B B

—

(9]

Conversion Charges from Leasehold Holding to
Freehold land

Water Charges

Water Charges on Residential buildings

Water Charges on Commercial buildings

Water Charges on State Government buildings

Water Charges on the Closed and Sick industries

Water Charges on industries under litigation or dispute

Permission Fee (Advertisement)

Permission Fee (Municipal Properties)

Permission Charges -Land hoarding

Permission Charges -Bus Shelter

Permission Charges — Public Transport

Permission Charges -Neon ,signs and shops

Permission Charges on tree guards

—_— === === ]~]=]|=]=]=]—|~

— === === ]~]=]|=]=]=]—]|~

— === S| o|o|o|c|o|o| © ||| |o|Io|olo|o]e

SO ||| ||| ||| © Q||| |c|Io|o|Io|<e
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Permission Charges on toilets

(=}
—_

~

Permission Charges on traffic signals, Police booths,
Umbrellas

—

Permission Charges on Footpaths, railing Poles, etc

—_

Permission Charges-Others (Water ATM, Balloon etc)

S |©o |

Permission Fee (Advertisement on Private Land and
Buildings)

—

Permission Charges on Pvt. land holdings

=}

Penalties and Fines

—

Penalty and Fine under the Haryana Municipal Act
1973/1994

Penalties and Fines under Other Acts

Penalties and Fines under Samjhota Adhisandhan

Octroi

Cess

Penalties and Fines — Others

Other Fees

Tuition Fees

House Connection for Water
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Disconnection fees
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Major
Code

N

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
0

Detail
Code

Description

Notice fees

Warrant fees

Mutation Fees

Property transfer fees

Sports Fees

Library Fees

Survey fees

Erection of building fees

Admission Fees-Education

Building/Development Fees

House Connection for Sewerage

Mooring of Vessels

User Charges

Lease Rent Annual Premium

Sale of medicines, X- Ray etc.

Examination Charges

Ambulance Charges

Funeral Van Services

Garbage Collection Fees

Septic tank Clearance Charges

Sewerage clearance charges
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Charges for Pay and Use toilets

—_

(9]
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—

Supply of extra water/Special water supply/water
tanker

Meter Rent for water Supply

Connection-charges, Electricity

Parking fees

Luggage Charges

Tickets Charges

Burial Ground Charges

Fire Extinguishing charges

Littering and Debris Collection Fees

Crematorium Charges

User Charges- Others

Sewerage Blockage and Sewerage inspection fees

Entry Fees

Park Entrance Fees

Entry Fees for Library

Entry Fees for Play grounds

Entry Fees for Zoo

Entry fees for swimming pool

Entry fees — Others

Entry Fees for Museum

Service/Administrative Charges

Service Charges
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Percentage on Deposit Works
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2351

Major
Code

N

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
0

Detail
Code

Description

Plan Preparation charges

Road Damage Recovery

Stacking Fees

Rebate from state government

Service/Administrative Charges — Others

Other Charges

Other Charges

Remission and Refund

Permission Fee (Advertisement)

Permission Charges -Land hoarding

Permission Charges -Bus Shelter

Permission Charges — Public Transport

Permission Charges -Neon, signs and shops

Permission Charges on Pvt. land holdings

=== l=|= ||~ |S|Co|S|IC|ICc|Ioc|Io|<

Permission Charges on toilets

—

—_—

=N || |W IO |I=ISIN|Ia|lvn]s]|W

Permission Charges on traffic signals, Police booths,
Umbrellas

—

—

Permission Charges on Footpaths, railing Poles, etc

—

—_

(=3 =l Bl FoX = =) R=J Kl Ko el il Rl Kl Nl Rl Rl Neol Ne)

Permission Charges on tree guards

—

—_

—_

Permission Charges-Others (Water ATM, Balloons
etc)

Water Charges

Water Charges on Residential buildings

Water Charges on Commercial buildings

Water Charges on State Government buildings

Water Charges on the Closed and Sick industries

Water Charges on industries under litigation or dispute

Other Fee and User Charges

Empanelment and Registration Charges

Licensing Fees

S — | ===~ ]=]~=|~]|~]~
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(= Rl Rl Fel Jel Rl Nl Nl Bl K=

Other Fee and Charges

‘ ‘ ‘ 0 ‘ 0 ‘ Sale and Hire Charges

Sale of Products

Sale of Tree Guards

Sale of garbage

Sale of Manure

Sale of rubbish

Sale of Compost

Sale of Trees

Sale of Flowers

Sale of Fruits

Sale of Nursery Plants

_ == == ]=]=]=]=]~=]~

Sale Of Grass

Sale of Forms and Publications

Sale of Tender Forms
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Sale of Maps
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Major
Code

W

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
0

Detail
Code

Description

Sale of Plans

Food license Form

Non-Residential Form

Sale Permission Form

Tax Review Form

Water connection Application Form

Birth Certificate Form

Death certificate Form

Provisional certificate Form

Clearance of Septic Tank Form

Sale of Forms and Publications- Others

Sale of Stores and Spares

Obsolete Stores

Obsolete assets

Sale of Others

Sale of Old newspapers

Sale of Impounded Animals

Sale of Others

Hire Charges for Vehicles

Hire Charges for Bus

Hire charges of ambulance

Hire charges of Other Vehicle

Hire Charges on Equipments

Hire Charges for rollers

Hire Charges for tools and Equipments
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Hire Charges for Medical Equipments
Reve 0 b 0 and bsidie

Revenue Grant

Grant from Education Departments

General Grant

Family Welfare Grants
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Road Development Grants
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Revenue Grants from State Finance Commission
Grants

—

[

Revenue Grants from Central Finance Commission
Grants

Census Grant

Revenue Grants from Government Agencies

Revenue Grant from Financial Institutions

Revenue Grant from Welfare Bodies

Revenue Grant from International Organizations

Revenue Grant from Others

Re-imbursement of expenses

Re-imbursement of expenses

Contribution towards Schemes
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Contribution towards Schemes




HARYANA GOVT. GAZ.,MAY 27, 2025 (JYST.6, 1947 SAKA)

2353

Major
Code

Minor
Code

Sub Minor
Code

Detail
Code

—
B |
<
—]
=]

Description

Income from Investments

Interest

Interest from fixed Deposits

Interest on Government deposits

Interest on Post office deposits

Interest-Others

Dividend

Saving Account

Dividend — Others

Income from projects taken on commercial basis

Income from plying of boats owned by local bodies

Income from water works owned by local bodies

Income from other sources

Profit on sale of Investments

Profit on sale of Investments

Other income from Investments

S |~ = ~]= ]~~~ ]|~]~]~]~]~]|~

SN O IS || |QC|Q|Q|IS|IQ|IQ|IS |||

‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Interest Earned

Appreciation in value of Investments

Interest from Bank Accounts

Interest from PD Account

Interest from SB Account

Interest on Loans and advances to Employees

Interest on House building Loan/Advance

Interest on Conveyance Advance

Interest on Computer Loan/Advance

Interest on Festival Advance

Interest on vehicle advance

Interest on Food Grain

Interest on Loans and advances to Employees- Others

Interest on Loans and advances to Others

Interest on Loans and advances to Others

Other Interest

Interest on Hire-Purchases

Interest on Property Tax receivable

Interest on Water Charges receivable
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Interest on rental Income receivable
Other Income
Deposits Forfeited

Contractors

Suppliers

Water Supply Deposits

Rental Deposits

Lapsed Deposits

Contractors

—_ =~ =]=]=]=]|~

0 |0 |Co |0 |0 |0 |00 |Co

(=3 Kol Esull Reoly el el el N al

— =~ oo

(=3 Reoll Bsull Reoly Rell el enly HSal
(=N Rl Bl Rl el el el N

(=l Kool Bsull Reol el el enly NSal

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

N =S lh|lw ]~

Suppliers




2354

HARYANA GOVT. GAZ.,MAY 27, 2025 (JYST.6, 1947 SAKA)

Major
Code

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code
0

Detail
Code

Description

Water Supply Deposits

Rental Deposits

Lapsed Deposits- Others

Insurance Claim Recovery

Insurance Claim Recovery

Profit on Disposal of fixed assets

Land

Buildings

Roads and Bridges

Fly Over

Sewerage and Drainage

Water Ways

Plants and Machinery

Vehicles

Office and Other Equipments

Furniture, fixtures, fittings and electric Appliances

Intangible assets

Recovery from employees

Recovery from employees

Unclaimed Refund Payable/Liabilities Written back

Stale cheques

Excess Provisions written back

Provision written back on Property Tax

Provision written back on Water Charge

Provision written back on Rental Income receivable

Provision written back on Encroached Lands

Provision written back for Depreciation

Miscellaneous Income

Income from TV Operators

Realization Under Haryana Municipal acts

Realization Under Other Acts
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Fines Under Other Acts/Contracts

—

Recoveries on account of services Rendered to Private
Individuals

Bad debts recovered

Sale of scrap and material

Penalties/Damages from Contractors

Penalties/Damages from Suppliers

Recoveries from Contractors

Recoveries from Suppliers
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Others Misc. Income
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Accounting Heads — Revenue Expenditure

Major Code

Minor
Code

Ny ©

Sub Minor
Code

Detail Code]

|
0

Description

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Salaries and Allowances — Officers

Salaries and Allowances — Staffs

Wages

Performance Bonus

Ex-gratia

Benefits and Allowances

Medical Re-imbursement

Education Allowance

Tuition Fees

Conveyance Allowance

Uniform to staff

Uniform Allowance

Parshad Allowance

HRD Expenses

Staff Welfare Expenses

Staff /Officers Training

Honorarium to Officers/ Staffs

Honorarium to Council members

Leave travel Concession

Over-time Allowance

—lm === === === == ==~ === ==~

ol el el el Bl Rl K==l Kl Rl Rl Hell [l En }l Fenli el Sl Ren )l Ken )i Kenll el Ran

Compensation to staff

—_—

—_—

Allowances to President/ Mayor/ Chief Municipal
Officer

Office Contingencies

Allowances to Other board of councilors

Others

Pension

Employee Pension

Family Pension

Pension Fund Contribution

Pension contribution for deputation staff

Pension deficit contribution

Pension contribution to Other Funds

Other Terminal and Retirement Benefits

Leave Encashment

Leave Salary Contribution

Leave salary Contribution for deputation staff

Death cum Retirement gratuity

Contribution to gratuity fund

Contribution to PF Funds
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Rent, Rates and Taxes

Office -Building rent

Other rents
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Rates and taxes

Major Code

Minor |Sub Minor

Code

Code

Detail
Code

Description
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Major Code|

Minor
Code

Sub Minor
Code

Detail
Code

Description

[\S]

[\S]

[«

0

Electricity expenses

Water Charges

Security expenses

Communication Expenses

Telephone Expenses

Cell phone Expenses

Postage and Telegram

Fax expenses

Books and Periodicals

Magazines

Newspapers

Journals

Books

Printing and Stationary

Printing

Stationary

Computer Consumables

SR~ ([SD|ER[WIN RIS R |WIN |~ (DWW (|~

Traveling and Conveyance

—_

Traveling and Conveyance -President /Mayor/Chief Municipal
Officer

Traveling and Conveyance -Board of Councilors

Traveling and Conveyance —Others

Fuel

Petrol and Diesel

Insurance

Insurance-Vehicles

Group Insurance scheme

Audit-Fees

Fee for Statutory Audit

Internal Audit Fees

Special Audit Fees

Legal Expenses

Legal Fees

Cost of recoveries of tax revenue

Suit Compromises

Professional and other Fees

Professional fees-Architecture

Professional fees-Engineer

Technical Fees

Consultancy Charges

Advertisement and Publicity

Hospitality Expenses

Advertisement and Publicity

Seminar and Workshop

Cultural events

Membership and Subscriptions

Professional Societies

Others

DO [0 B |00 D [D [D D[RO (D [D[D | |00 D [D [D R0 [ D [D [R0 [D B[RO (DN [D [ [ DO [BO [D DO [D[B0 [N [N |h0 [N [N || [ho DN

DO (DO B[R0 B [D [D D[RO (D [D[D | |00 D [D [D R0 [ D [D [R0 [D[B (DO [N (D[RO DO [DO[DO D[RO [N [N [h0 [N [ho NN

(=) ) [l Il fel fel fal Fal fa il fel [l [l [l full fal fe Rl () fal el il fel fal [y [l [l i el -l (o) fel fe R Fel Sl [l [l [l fal (il el el Fall ferl [l Kl Kan)

O[O |DN[|D[[A[DN|Q ||| h |[|n (a [BBER|W[W W W [ BR[NNI [D DB [D D[R [ [ = | = | = || = = =

O |~ QOO N[N (=== |~ O OO (DO (OO © D= m " NC|IC|C D (DN — = —

Olal|olalololc|olalo|o|oic|alolc|olalo|oloialo|oalolc|olel © [ololoc|aloo|olo|aloloc|oalo|e|e
olalolalo|olo|lo|alolo|o|o|alo|ooalo|oolalo|olalo|o|olc| © |alolc|olalo|o|ololalo|olo|o|alolo|o
o|S|Ioc|S|lo|lo|o|o|S | olo|lolaoClololoC|lo|lo|o|S|lo|o|S|lo|o|olol o [Slolo|o|C|lo|o|o|o|S|o|lo|lo|o|Slo|lo|o

OID (O |C 0o |Io|o|Io|Io|ID|C|o|o|ID|c|cIo IS |o|oIo|o oo |0 O S o|Ic|Io|Io|Io oIS |o|c oo |ID|e|e

=IO (SR [ RN =D |WR|IN = D[R~ DW= D= |D|n (k[

Medicine, Phenyle etc.

2

2

0

8

0

0100

0|2

Other Contingencies (The detailed codes for branch/department]
wise may be used by Municipality after approval from DULB)

2 3 0‘ 0 0 0‘ 0‘ 0 ‘ 0 ‘ 0 Operation and Maintenance
0 | 0 | Power and Fuel
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3 10| 1
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. Minor |Sub Minor| Detail o
Major Code] Code Code Code Description
21310 0 Electricity Expenses

Diesel expenses

Petrol expenses

Bulk Purchases

Bulk Purchase of Electricity

Bulk Purchase of Water

Consumption of Stores

Central Store

Engineering Store

Auto Store

Medical Store

Health Store

Stationary Store

Storm water Store

Drainage Store

Sewerage Store

Sanitary and Conservancy Store

Water Supply Store

Electricity Store

Machinery Spares

Hire-Charges

Hire-charges —Ambulance

Hire -Charges-Road rollers

Hire -Charges-Machinery Rent

Repair and Maintenance-Statues and Heritage Assets

Repair and Maintenance-Statues and Heritage Assets

Repair and Maintenance -Infrastructure Assets

Repair and Maintenance-Roads and Pavements

Repair and Maintenance- Bridges and Flyovers

Repair and Maintenance-Water Supply

Repair and Maintenance-Sewerage and Drainage

Repair and Maintenance-Street Light Posts

Repair and Maintenance-Storm Water Drains

Repair and Maintenance-Parks, Garden and Playgrounds

Repair and Maintenance -Civic Amenities

Repair and Maintenance-Parks, Garden and Playgrounds

Repair and Maintenance —lakes

Repair and Maintenance -Parking Lots

Repair and Maintenance —Markets, Commercial Complex

Repair and Maintenance -Play Materials

Repair and Maintenance -Public toilets

Repair and Maintenance-Swimming Pools

Repair and Maintenance-Stadium

Repair and Maintenance —Nursery

Repair and Maintenance —Houses

Repair and Maintenance —Hospitals

Repair and Maintenance —Schools

Repair and Maintenance - Buildings

Repair and Maintenance - Office Buildings

Repair and Maintenance — Residential Buildings

Others

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles
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. Minor |Sub Minor| Detail .
Major Code Code Code Code Description
310 0 0 Buses
Cars
Jeeps
Cranes
Trucks
Tankers

Road-rollers

Repair and Maintenance -Others

Repair and Maintenance-Furniture and Fixtures

Repair and Maintenance-Electric Appliances

Repair and Maintenance-Office equipment

Repair and Maintenance-Survey and Drawing Equipment’s

Repair and Maintenance -Plant and Machinery

Repair and Maintenance —Other Fixed Assets

Other operating and Maintenance expenses

Testing and Inspection expenses

Water Purification expenses

Manure Analysis

Garbage Clearance expenses

Contract Vehicle

Fodder to Animals

Patient food expenses

Patient Laundry expenses

Tax of Public Transport

NSRESHESRESERSRESRISRISELSEESRLNRESRISEESHISRESRESESEE SIS RESRESRESRE SRS
(SR RVSE VST RUSH RS VST QUSROS RUST RUSH ROCH RUS I VST RUSH LU RRUS R RS LOCH RUS N RUS R RUS R HUS RRUS ) OS]

Others
: d — —

Interest on Loans from the Central Government

Interest on Loans from the Central Government

Interest on Loans from the State Government

— IO |~ IS |C|RX QAN N (RN~ N[RN[R W

Interest on Loans from the State Government

S

Interest on Loans from the Government Bodies and
associations

Interest on Loans from the State Government

Interest on Loans from the Central Government

Interest on Loans from International Agencies

Interest on Loans from International Agencies

Interest on Loans from Banks and other Financial Institutions

Interest on Loans from Banks and other Financial Institutions

Other Interest

Interest on Leases

Interest on Hire-Purchases

Interest on Bonds

Interest on Debentures

Bank Charges

Bank Charges

Other Finance Expenses

Discount on Early/Prompt Payments

Commitment charges

Rebate on Property Tax Receivable
Programme Expenses
Election Expenses

Election Expenses
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Minor |Sub Minor| Detail

Major Code Code Code Code Description
21510 0 0 Own Programmes
0 0 Share in programme of others

Share in programme of others
Revenue Grants, Contributions and Subsidies

Grants

Central government

State government

Other Government Agencies
Financial Institutions
International Organizations
Grant to SC/ST House Holders
Contributions

Central government

State government

Other Government Agencies
Financial Institutions
International Organizations
Subsidies

Central government

State government

Other Government Agencies
Financial Institutions
International Organizations
Provisions and write offs

Provision For doubtful Receivables

Provision for doubtful receivables on Property tax
Provision for doubtful receivables on Water Charge
Provision for doubtful receivables on Fees and User Charges
Provision for doubtful receivables on Rent
Provision for doubtful receivables — Others
Provision for Other Assets

Provision for Stores

Provision for Fixed Assets

Provision for Encroached Lands

Provision for Investments

Revenues Written Off

Property Tax

Water Charge

Rental Income

Assigned Revenues

Grants

Other Income

Assets Written off

Buildings

Roads and Bridges

Sewerage and Drainage

Waterways

Public Lighting

Plant and Machinery

Vehicles

Office and Other Equipment

Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings and Electric Appliances
Stores
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Minor |Sub Minor| Detail

Major Code Code Code Code Description
21710 0 0 | 0 | Miscellaneous Expense Written off
2 0 0 Issue Expenses for Bonds
2 Issue Expenses for Others
2 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Miscellaneous Expenses

Loss on Disposal of Assets
Buildings
Parks and Play grounds
Roads and Bridges
Sewerage and Drainage
Waterways
Public Lighting
Plant and Machinery
Vehicles
Office and Other Equipment
Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings and Electric Appliances
Loss on Disposal of Investments
Loss on Disposal of Investments
Decline in Value of Investments
Decline in Value of Investments
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Depreciation
Buildings
Office Building
Ward/Borough Buildings
Hospital Buildings
Schools Buildings
Municipal halls, shops, town halls
Park Buildings
Parks and Play grounds
Parks and Play grounds
Roads and Bridges
Roads and Pavements-Concrete
Roads and Pavements-Black topped
Roads and Pavements —Others
Bridges
Sub-Ways
Cause-Ways
Sewerage and Drainage
Storm Water Drainage
Drains-Open
Drains-Closed
Culverts
Waterways
Water Pipelines
Deep Tube wells
Water tanks
Bore Wells
Open Wells
Reservoirs
Public Lighting
Lamp Posts
Transformers
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Plant and Machinery
Water treatment plants
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. Minor |Sub Minor| Detail ..
Major Code Code Code Code Description
21712 0 0 Water pumping plants

Sewerage treatment plants

Sewerage pumping station

Hospital machinery

Road Rollers

Mixing Mortars

Bulldozers

Mechanical Sweepers

Cranes

Loaders

Submersible Pumps

Motor Pumps

School Equipments

Vehicles

Ambulances

Buses

Cars

Jeeps

Motor Cycles

Trucks

Tankers

Lorry

Tractors

Mini Lorry

Office and Other Equipments

Computers

Xerox-Machines

Type-Writers

Communication Equipments

Refrigerators

Public address systems

Wireless equipments

T.V. sets

Air conditioners

Water Coolers

Radios

Furniture, fixtures, fittings and electric Appliances

Cabinets

Cupboards

Chairs

Tables

Fans

Electric Fittings and Installations

Other Fixed Assets
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Software licensee fees

[ ’ Prior Period Item (Income and Expense)

Taxes

Property Tax

Sewerage Tax

Conservancy Tax/Latrine Tax

Lightening Tax

Education Tax
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Minor |Sub Minor | Detail
Code Code Code
0 0

Major Code Description

[\S)
[ee]
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Tax on Animals

Electricity Tax

Professional Tax

Pilgrimage Tax

Any Other Tax

Other-Revenues

Rental Income

Fee and User Charges

Fees and User Charges
Recovery of Revenues Written off
Tax Revenue

Assigned Revenue and Compensation
Rental Income from Municipal Properties
Fees and User Charges

Other Income

Other Income

Refund of Taxes

Property Tax

Sewerage Tax

Conservancy Tax/Latrine Tax
Lightening Tax

Education Tax

Vehicle Tax

Tax on Animals

Electricity Tax

Professional Tax

Pilgrimage Tax

Other Taxes

Refund of Other-Revenue

Fees and User Charges
Assigned Revenues

Grants

Contributions

Subsidies

Other-Expenses (Bad Debts Etc)
Other-Expenses

Transfer to Reserve Funds

9 INSRRNRESNESNEORECRECNL SR SN SNESRE ORISR SRESRISELSEILSRISRINSELSRLNSELSRLSELSRLSELNEESRLNNESNINN NSNS NE SN S

Transfer to Reserve Fund
Transfer to Sinking Fund
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Accounting Heads — Capital Receipts and Liabilities

Minor Sub Minor Detail
Code Code Code

0 0 00

Major Code

w
=}

S
S

Municipal (General) Fund
Municipal Fund

Municipal Fund

Excess of Income and Expenditure

Excess of Income and Expenditure
Earmarked Funds
Road Fund

Road Fund

Development Fund

Development Fund

Sewerage and Drainage Fund

Sewerage and Drainage Fund

Water Supply Fund

Water Supply Fund

City Development Fund

City Development Fund

Sinking Fund

Sinking Fund

Pension Fund

Pension Fund

Provident Fund

Provident Fund

Benevolent Fund

— i~ =~ =~ = = =~ =~ =~ =~ =~ ] — [~ — |~

Benevolent Fund
Reserves

Capital Contribution

Capital Contribution

Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve

Borrowing Redemption Reserve

Borrowing Redemption Reserve

Special Fund (Utilized)

Special Fund (Utilized)

Statutory Reserve

Statutory Reserve

General Reserve

General Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve
Grants, Contributions for specific purposes

Central Government

13" Finance commission grant

14" Finance commission grant

15" Finance commission grant

SJISRY

National Games

Central Government- JINNURM

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna (PMAY)
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Minor Sub Minor Detail
Code Code Code
0 0

Major Code Description

[\
(e

Swachh Bharat Mission (SBM)

Smart City Project

New Urban Renewal Mission

Other Central Govt. Grants

State Government

Grant for Road and Drain Developments
Swarn Jayanti Urban Employment Scheme
Improvement for Kachi Basti

Grant for Cheap Flush Toilets

Grant from MLAs for Development
Grant from MP’s for Development

Grant for Strengthening of fire Extinguishing

Grant for Equipment under EFC

Grant from State Finance Commission for development
scheme

Grant on recommendation of Finance Commission
Grant for Family welfare

Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Sewa Basti Utthan

Kurukshetra Development Board

Urban Solid Waste Management

O |oo|Io|c|Io|Io oo~~~

Training Plan for Woman Councilors

Shifting of Milk Dairies

Rajiv Gandhi Sahari Bhagidari Yojna (RGSBY)
Other Specific Grants

Other Government Agencies

Other Government Agencies

Financial Institutions
Financial Institutions
Welfare Bodies
Welfare Bodies
International Organizations
International Organizations
Other Organizations
Other Organizations

‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Secured Loans ‘
Loans from Central Government
Loans from Central Government
Loans from State Government
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Loans from State Government

Loan from Government Bodies and Associations
Loan from Government Bodies and Associations
Loan from International Agencies

Asian Development Bank

Others

Loan from Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Haryana Shahri Vikas Pradikaran

Others

Other term Loans

Other term loans

Hire-Purchase

Bonds and Debentures

Bonds and Debentures

Other Loans
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. Minor Sub Minor Detail
R Code Code Code
310 0 Other Loans
1 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Unsecured Loans
Loans from Central Government
Loans from Central Government

Description

W 98]

Loans from State Government
Loans from State Government

Loan from Government Bodies and Associations
Loan from Government Bodies and Associations

Loan from International Agencies
Loan from International Agencies

Loan from Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Loan from Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Other term Loans

Hire Purchase Loans

Bonds and Debentures
Bonds and Debentures
Other Loans

Other Loans

Deposits Received

[SSRRUCH USH LUCE RUSH U RUS R LUV UL LUV HUS T LUV HUS LUV HUS N LUV

‘

From Contractors and Suppliers
Earnest Money Deposit

Security Deposit

Tender Money Deposit
Deposits-Revenues

Water Connection

Electricity Connection

Rental Deposits

License Deposits

Others

Deposits-Staff

Deposits-Staff

Deposits-Other

Deposits-Other

‘ Deposits Works

Civil Works

Civil Works

Electric Works

Electric Works

Other works

Other Works

Other Liabilities (Sundry Creditors)
Creditors

Suppliers Control Accounts
Contractors Control Accounts
Expenses Payables

Payables against Funds
Payables against Grants
Payables against Specific Scheme
Contractors Advance Control account
Employee Liabilities

Gross Salary Payable

Net Salary Payable

Unpaid Salaries Payable
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Minor Sub Minor Detail

bifaer Codls Code Code Code

Description

W
(e}

0 P. F. Payable

Pension/Pension Contribution Payable

Gratuity Payable

Contribution to Welfare fund Payable

Leave Salary Payable

P.F. Payable for Deputation staff

Pension Contribution Payable for Deputation staff

Interest Accrued and due

Interest Accrued and due on Hire-Purchases

Interest Accrued and due on Loans

Recoveries Payable

Provident fund for employees on Deputation

Good and Service Tax

Professional Tax

Work-Contract tax payable

TDS From Employees

TDS From Contractors

TDS From Suppliers

LIC Payable

Group Insurance Scheme Premium Payable

Sales Tax Payable

Works Contract Taxes

CGST

SGST

IGST

Other Taxes

Government Dues Payable

Health Cess

Education Cess

Court Attachments

Commercial Taxes

TDS payable

Other Deductions

Refunds Payable

Refunds Payable for taxes

Refund Payable for Revenue Grants

Refund Payable for Deposit Works

Refund Payable for Attached Properties

Refund Payable for Water Supply

Refund Payable for rent

Refund Payable for specific grants

Refund Payable for Octrai

Refund Payable for Cess

Advance Collection of Revenues

Advance Collection of Property tax

Advance Collection of Rental Income

Advance Collection of Water Charges

Advance Collection of Fees and User Charges

Advance Collection of Advertisement Charges

Advance Collection of Water Supply Income

Others

Compensation Payable by Municipalities
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Minor Sub Minor Detail

B Code Code T

Description

W
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0 Hire Purchase Charges payable

Lease Charges Payable

Hire Purchase Interest Receivable Control account

Hire Purchase Advance Received

Sale Proceeds

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets

Stores

Stores

Investments

Investments

Others

Attached properties

W |W W W [W W [W W |W | [W|W | (W w
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Others
Pro 0

Provisions for Expenses

Rent Rates and Taxes

Office-Maintenance

Communication Expenses

Books and Periodicals

Printing and Stationary

Traveling and Conveyance

Insurance

Audit-Fees

Legal Expenses

Professional and other Fees

Advertisement and Publicity

Membership and Subscriptions

Power and Fuel

Hire-Charges

Repair and Maintenance-Statues and Heritage Assets

Repair and Maintenance -Infrastructure Assets

Repair and Maintenance -Civic Amenities

Repair and Maintenance -Buildings

Repair and Maintenance —Vehicles

Repair and Maintenance —Others

Other Operating and Maintenance-Expenses

Provision For Interest

Loans from Central Government

Loans from State Government

Loan from Government Bodies and Associations

Loan from International Agencies

Loan from Banks and Other Financial Institutions

Other term Loans

Bonds

Debentures

Interest Accrued but not Due

Provision For Other Assets

Stores

Investments
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Account Heads — Capital Expenditure and Assets

. Minor Sub Minor Detail oy

Major Code Code Code Code Description
4 | | | | | ed a

Land

Grounds

Open Markets

Parks

Garden

Vacant Lands

Lands under Permissive Possession

Buildings

Office Buildings

School Buildings

Community Center

Municipal halls, shops, town halls

Hospitals and Dispensaries

Public Conveniences

Park Buildings

Pumping Station Building

Sewerage Treatment Plant Building

Statues, heritage assets, antiques and other works of art

Statues, heritage assets, antiques and other works of art

Roads and Bridges

Roads and Pavements-Concrete

Roads and Pavements-Black topped

Roads and Pavements—Others

Bridges

Subways

Culverts

Flyovers

Sewerage and Drainage

Drains-Open

Drains- Underground

Water Ways

Water Pipelines

Deep Tube wells

Water Tanks

Bore Wells

Open Wells

Reservoirs

Public Lighting

Lamp Posts

Transformers

Others

Plant and Machinery

Water treatment plants

Water pumping plants

Sewerage treatment plants

Sewerage pumping station

Hospital machinery

Motor Pumps
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School Equipments
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Major Code

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code

Detail
Code

Description

[

o

Vaccum Emptier

Vehicles

Ambulances

Buses

Cars

Jeeps

Motor Cycles

Trucks

Tankers

Lorry

Tractors

Mini Lorry

Office and Other Equipments

Computers and Printers

Xerox-Machines

Type-Writers

Communication Equipment’s

Refrigerators

Public address systems

Wireless Equipment’s

T.V. Sets

Air conditioners

Water Coolers

Fax Machine

Radios

Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings and Electric Appliances

Cabinets

Cupboards

Chairs

Tables

Fans

Electric Fittings and installations

Others

Other Fixed Assets

Software License fees

Assets Under Disposal

Land

Buildings

Parks and Playgrounds

Roads and Bridges

Sewerage and Drainage

Water Ways

Public Lighting

Plant and Machinery

Vehicles

Office and other Equipments
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Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings and Electric Appliances
A ated ' O o ) 0

Buildings

Office buildings

School buildings

Hospitals and dispensaries
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Public conveniences
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Minor Sub Minor Detail

Llpgte Code Code Code

Description

0 Municipal halls, shops, town halls

Park Buildings

Pumping Station Building

Sewerage treatment Plant Building

Roads and Bridges

Roads and Pavements-Concrete

Roads and Pavements-black topped

Roads and Pavements —Others

Bridges

Subways

Culverts

Flyovers

Sewerage and Drainage

Drains-Open

Drains-Under Ground

Water Ways

Water Pipelines

Deep Tube wells

Water tanks

Bore Wells

Open Wells

Reservoirs

Public Lighting

Lamp posts

Transformers

Others

Plant and Machinery

Water treatment plants

Water pumping plants

Sewerage treatment plants

Sewerage pumping station

Hospital machinery

Motor Pumps

School Equipments

Vacuum Emptier

Vehicles

Ambulances

Buses

Cars

Jeeps

Motor Cycles

Trucks

Tankers

Lorry

Tractors

Mini Lorry

Office and Other Equipments

Computers and Printers

Xerox-Machines

Type-Writers

Communication Equipments

Refrigerators
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Public address systems
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Minor Sub Minor Detail

Lo Lodls Code Code Code

Description

(=]

Wireless equipments

T.V. sets

Air conditioners

Water Coolers

Radios

Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings and Electric Appliances

Cabinets

Cupboards

Chairs

Tables

Fans

Electric Fittings and installations

Other Fixed Assets

Software License fees

Capital Work-in-progress

Specific Grants

Buildings

Parks and Playgrounds

Statues, heritage assets, antiques and other works of art

Roads and Bridges

Sewerage and Drainage

Water Ways

Public Lighting

Plant and Machinery

Specific Funds

Buildings

Parks and Playgrounds

Statues, heritage assets, antiques and other works of art

Roads and Bridges

Sewerage and Drainage

Water Ways

Public Lighting

Plant and Machinery

Specific Schemes

Buildings

Parks and Playgrounds

Statues, heritage assets, antiques and Other works of art

Roads and Bridges

Sewerage and Drainage

Water Ways

Public Lighting

Plant and Machinery

‘ ‘ ’ ‘ Investments-General Fund ‘

Central Government Securities
Central Government Securities
State Government Securities
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State Government Securities

Debentures and Bonds
Debentures and Bonds
Preference Shares
Preference Shares
Equity Shares

Equity Shares
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Minor Sub Minor Detail
Code Code Code
6 0

Major Code Description

N
S

Units of Mutual Fund
Units of Mutual Fund

Other Investments
Other Investments

0

1

0

1

0 | Accumulated provision

1 | Central Government Securities
2 | State Government Securities

3 | Debentured and Bonds
4

5

6

7

0

Preference Shares
Equity Shares

Units of Mutual Fund
Others

‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Investments-Other Fund ‘

Central Government Securities

& [N NG S N NG NG I B N (N N
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Central Government Securities

State Government Securities
State Government Securities
Debentured and Bonds
Debentured and Bonds

Preference Shares
Preference Shares
Equity Shares

Equity Shares

Units of Mutual Fund
Units of Mutual Fund
Other Investments

Other Investments
Accumulated provision

0

1

0

1

0

1

0

1

0

1

0

1

0

1

0

1 | Central Government Securities
2 | State Government Securities
3 | Debentured and Bonds

4 | Preference Shares

5 | Equity Shares
6
7
|
0
1
2
5
6
7
8
9
0
1
2
3
0
1
0
1

Units of Mutual Fund
Others
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Stores

Central Store

Engineering Store
Health Store
Stationary Store
Storm water Store

Drainage Store

Sewerage Store

Sanitary and Conservancy Store
Water Supply Store

Electricity Store

Machinery Spares

Loose Tools

Loose Tools
Others
Others
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0 | Sundry Debtors (Receivables)
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. Minor | Sub Minor Detail .
Major Code Code Code Code Description
41311 |1|0]| 0| 0| 01| 0| 0| Receivables for Property Taxes (Year-Wise)
4131 ] 1]0]0]0] 0] 0] 1 |PropertyTax Receivable on Residential (Current year)
4 1311|110/ 0] 0] 0] 0| 2 |Property Tax Receivable on Residential (Arrears)
4 1311|110 0] 0] 0] 0| 3 |Property Tax Receivable on Commercial (Current year)
41311 ]10]0]0]O07] 0] 4 |Property Tax Receivable on Commercial (Arrears)
sl3l1l1lololololols Property Tax Receivable on State government Buildings
(CurrentYear)
sl3l1l1lololololols Property Tax Receivable on State government Buildings
(Arrears)
Service Charge in lieu of Property Tax of central
41311 ! 0101010710717 GovernmentBuildings (Current Year)
11 ol s Service Charge in lieu of Property Tax of central
GovernmentBuildings (Arrears)
1|1 0 | 9 | Property Tax Receivable on Vacant Land (Current Year)
1 |1 1 | 0 | Property Tax Receivable on Vacant Land (Arrear)
11 1 1 Property Tax Receivable on Institutional land (Current

Year)

Property Tax Receivable on Institutional land (Arrear)

Property Tax Receivable on Religious Building (CY)

Property Tax Receivable on Religious Building (Arrear)

Property Tax on Closed and Sick Industry (Current Year)

Property Tax on Closed and Sick Industry (Arrear)

Property Tax on Industry under litigation (Current Year)

Property Tax on Industry under litigation (Arrear)

Surcharge Receivable on Property Tax (Current year)

Surcharge Receivable on Property Tax (Arrears)

Receivables for Other Taxes

Other Taxes

Receivables for Cess

Receivables for Cess

Receivables for Fees and User Charges

Receivables for Permission Fee (Advertisement)

Permission Fee -Land hoarding (Current year)

Permission Fee -Land hoarding (Previous year)

Permission Fee -Bus Shelter (Current year)

Permission Fee -Bus Shelter (Previous year)

Permission Fee -Neon, signs and shops (Current Year)

Permission Fee -Neon, signs and shops (Previous Year)

Permission Fee on Pvt. land holdings (Current Year)

Permission Fee on Pvt. land holdings (Previous Year)

Permission Fee on toilets (Current Year)
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Permission Fee on toilets (Previous Year)
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Permission Fee on traffic signals, Police booths,
Umbrellas(CY)

Permission Fee on traffic signals, Police booths,

A3 300l L2 Umbrellas (PY)

a3l 1l3lololol 113 zzr;rrl)lssmn Fee on Footpaths, railing Poles (Current

sl3l1l3lololol1!l1la Permission Fee on Footpaths, railing Poles (Previous
Year)

41311 13]0]0]0]1 1 | 5 | Permission Fee on tree guards (Current year)

4131 ]3]0]0]0]1 1 | 6 | Permission Fee on tree guards (Current year)

41311 [3]10[0]01]21] 0| 0 |Receivables for Water Charges

4131 ]3]0]0]07 2] 0] 1 |WaterCharges Receivable on Residential (Current year)

41311 (310 0]01] 2] 0| 2 |Water Charges Receivable on Residential (Arrears)
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. Minor Sub Minor Detail ..
Major Code Code Code Code Description
1 0 0 Water Charges Receivable on Commercial (Current

year)

—

Water Charges Receivable on Commercial (Arrears)

—

Water Charges Receivable State government (Current
Year)

Water Charges Receivable State government (Arrears)

Receivables for Other Fee and User Charges

Receivables for License Fees

Registration Fees

Other Fee and User Charges

Receivables from other Sources

Receivables for Rental Income

Interest accrued and due

Interest accrued and not due

Interest Due from loans to employees

Interest Due from Advance to employees

Lease Rental Receivables

Receivables from Government

Grants Receivable

Compensation

Contributions

Subsidies

Fee on transfer of property

Entertainment Tax

Cess on GST

Stamp Duty Share

Motor Vehicle Tax

Electricity Tax on Electricity

Receivables control accounts

Property Tax

Water Charge

Cess

Fees and User Charges

Government

Rental Income

Permission Fee
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Other Taxes and Fee
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State Govt. Cesses/levies in Property Tax-Control

1

Account

41301 lol1lolololol1 State Govt. Cesses/levies in Property Tax-Control
Account

41311192 00| 0 ol o State Govt. Cesses/levies in Water Charges-Control
Account

sl3l1lol2lololololn State Govt. Cesses/levies in Water Charges-Control
Account

4131119191010 0| 0| 0| StateGovt. Cesses/levies in Other Tax-Control Account

413711919 ]0]01] 0] 0| 1 |StateGovt. Cesses/leviesin Other Tax-Control Account

4 3 2 0 0 0 0 ’ 0 ‘ 0 ‘ 0 Accur_nulated Provisions against Debtors
(Receivables)

41321110\ 0| 01| 01| 0| 0| Provision for Outstanding Property Tax

41312 ]11]10]0]0] 0] 0] 1 |PropertyTax Receivable on Residential Buildings

4 13121 0] 0] 0] 0| 0| 2 |Property Tax Receivable on Commercial Buildings

413]2[1]0]0]07] 0] 0| 3 |PropertyTax Receivable on State government Buildings

4130211 1lololololola Service Charge in lieu of P.Tax of central Government

Bldgs
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Major Code

Minor
Code

Sub Minor

Code

Detail
Code

Description

w

\9)

0

[

0

Surcharge receivable on Property Tax

Provision for Outstanding Water Charges

Water Charges Receivable on Residential Buildings

— | = |~ | —

1
1
1

Water Charges Receivable on Commercial Buildings

—
Ju—

Water Charges Receivable on State government
Buildings

Provision for Outstanding Other Taxes

Provision for Outstanding Other Taxes

Provision for Outstanding Cess

Provision for Outstanding Cess

Provision for Outstanding Fees and User Charges

License Fees

Notice Fees

Rental Income from Municipal Properties

Other Fee and User Charges

Provision for Other Outstanding Receivable
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Provision for Other Outstanding Receivable
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State Govt. Cesses/levies in Property Tax-Provision
Account

N

w

[

—_—

State Govt. Cesses/levies in Property Tax-Provision
Account

BN

State Govt. Cesses/levies in Water Charges-Provision
Ale

N

State Govt. Cesses/levies in Water Charges-Provision
Alc

N

0

0

0

0

State Govt. Cesses/levies in Other Tax-Provision
Account

Y &~

0

0

0

1

State Govt. Cesses/levies in Other Tax-Provision
Account

’ ’ ’ ’ Pre-Paid Expenses

Establishment

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Benefits and Allowances

Pension

Other Terminal and Retirement Benefits

Administration

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Office-Maintenance

Communication Expenses

Books and Periodicals

Printing and Stationary

Traveling and Conveyance

Insurance

Audit-Fees

Legal Expenses

Professional and other Fees

Advertisement and Publicity

Membership and Subscriptions

Operation and Maintenance

Power and Fuel

Bulk Purchases

Hire-Charges

Repair and Maintenance -Infrastructure Assets
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Minor Sub Minor Detail
Code Code Code
0 0

Major Code Description

N
[e=)

Repair and Maintenance -Buildings
Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles
Repair and Maintenance -Others
Other operating and Maintenance expenses
Cash and Bank Balance ‘
Cash-in —Hand
Cash-in —Hand
Nationalized Banks -Municipal Fund
Main Bank Account
Other Bank Account
Other Schedule Banks-Municipal Fund
Other Schedule Banks-Municipal Fund
Schedule Co-operative Banks -Municipal Fund
Schedule Co-operative Banks -Municipal Fund
Post Office -Municipal Fund
Post Office -Municipal Fund
Nationalized Banks -Special Funds
Nationalized Banks -Special Funds
Other Schedule Banks-Special Funds
Other Schedule Banks-Special Funds
Schedule Co-operative Banks -Special Fundls
Schedule Co-operative Banks -Special Funds
Post Office -Special Funds
Post Office -Special Funds
Nationalized Banks -Grant Funds
Nationalized Banks -Grant Funds
Other Schedule Banks-Grant Funds
Other Schedule Banks-Grant Funds
Schedule Co-operative Banks -Grant Funds
Schedule Co-operative Banks -Grant Funds
Post Office -Grant Funds
Post Office -Grant Funds
’ ’ ’ ’ Loans, Advances and Deposits
Loans and Advances to employees
House Building Advance
Conveyance Advance
Computer Advance
Festival Advance
Vehicle Advance
Food Grain Advance
Employee PF Loans/NPS Fund Loans
Loan from Provident Fund
Housing Loan
Vehicle Loan
Loan from New Pension Scheme Fund
Loan from New Pension Scheme Fund
Loans to Others
Loans to Others
Advance to Suppliers and Contractors
Advance for Municipal Works
Advance for Stores
Material Issued to the Contractors
Advance for Hire-Purchase assets
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Major Code 1\(/:[::2;: Su‘té(I:/([ilenor %?g;l Description
416|10[4][0]0|]0] 0] 0| 5 |Advance to Suppliers and Contractors — Others
41610 |51 0]| 01| 0| 01| 0| 0| Advance to Others

4160|510 0]0|0]| 0| 1 |Permanent Advance

4160 |5]0|0]0|0]| 0| 2 |Temporary Advance

4160 |5[0]0]0| 0] 0| 3 |Advance Against Projects
416[0|5[0]0]0]| 0] 0] 4 | Advance against Grants
416[10]|5]0]0]0]0] 0] 5 | Advance against Schemes

416|106 | 0] 0] 0| 0| 0| 0 | Deposits with External Agencies
41610600 0] 0] 0] 1 |Telephone Deposit

416|060 0] 0| 0] 0| 2 |Electricity Deposit
4160|1600 00| 0| 3 |Water Deposit

41610 8|0]| 0| 0| 0| 0| 0| Other Current Assets

416108, 0]0]0]|01]0O0 1 | H.P. installments Receivable
416108 0]0] 0| 0] 0| 2 | Interest Receivable on Loans
4160|800 0] 0] 0| 3 |Interest Receivable on Advances
41610 (8| 0| 0] 01| 0] 0| 4 |Scheme Expenses

4 6 0 0 0 0 0 |'”..""' - s
4161 |1|0]| 0| 0| 01| 01| 0| LoanstoOthers

4161 |1 ]10]0]0|O0] 0] 1 |LoanstoOthers

416 [ 1|2 |0]| 0] 0] 0| 0| 0| Advances

4161 [210[0]0]0] 0] 1 |Advances

416 |1 [13]101]0] 0] 0] 0| 0 | Deposits

4161 [310[0]0] 0] 0/ 1 |Deposits

4 7 0 0 ‘ 0 ‘ 0 0 0 0 o0 ‘ Other Assets ‘
4171011 ]10]0] 0] 0] 0| 0 | Depositworks —Expenditure
417101 ]0][0]J0]0][O0] 1 |Civi

417101 ]10[0]0] 0] 0] 2 |Electrical

4171012 |01| 01| 0| 0| 0| 0| InterUnit Transactions

4171012 ]10]0]0/] 0] 0] 1 |InterUnitTransactions —AU
418101 |0| 0| 0| 0| 0| 0| Loan Issue Expenses

418101 10]0]0] 0] 0] 1 |LoanlIssue Expenses

418101210 1]0] 0| 0] 0| 0 | Discount on Issue of Loans

4181012 ]0]0]07]07]0] 1 |Discounton Issue of Loans
4181031010 0| 01| 01| 0| Other

4180 |3]0]0]07]07] 0] 1 |LossonlssueofDebtSecurities
41810310 0]01] 0] 0| 2 |Unamortized Discount on Issue of Debt Securities
3.12 Simplified Definitions:

e  Revenue Income: Money or money equivalent earned or accrued during an accounting
period,increasing the total of previously existing net assets, and arising from provision of
any type of servicesand rentals.

e  Revenue Expenses: A cost relating to the operations of an accounting period or to the
revenue earned during the period or the benefits of which do not extend beyond that
period.

e  Capital Receipt and Liabilities: Any amount owing by one person to another, payable
in money, or in goods or services, the consequence of an asset or service received, or a
loss incurred or accrued.

e  Capital Expenditure and Assets: Tangible objects or intangible rights owned by the
Urban Local Bodies (Municipalities) and carrying probable future benefits. In simple
terms the properties used in the operation or investment activities of a business.

3.13 Sample Accounting Entries:
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X D. | 75500 Jun

Y ) B k

25,0000 L dg
110-01-000-01 x- dn C. 32,500
110-01-000-02 x—C mm C. 6,500
140-16-000-01 | W Ch g- dn C. 8,000
L n x c. 3,500)

9 O h C .
Su Mun h ndn m n g nh g
nd g nd B hC h A uwn B nhh h wng n

M nB nk A

un * D 25,000 C h
B k,
g n nDg F nd L dg
140-10-000-08 [U )Ch g C. 15,000
B hC Fm S _nd
9 H )Ch g C. 10,000
s w p b F gnzng h
x n und uh d ndh h m ) n g
,h A un B nhh h wng n

E hmn Ex n -S nd

D. 35,000 Jun
A wn B k,
350-11-000-01 C. 35,000[L dg
Em L -G
S
h dh uh h FxdA ., h

F P h % L D. 00,000 Jun

B k

C d -Su A un L dg
350-10-000-01 Cn /Su Su D C. 00,000
340- 10-000-02 [T S pp C. 0,000
0,000
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